

RESOLUTION NO.

1 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BROWARD
2 COUNTY, FLORIDA, PERTAINING TO RESILIENT ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT
3 FEES; AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 40 OF THE BROWARD
4 COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE (“ADMINISTRATIVE CODE”), UPDATING FEES
5 CHARGED FOR SERVICES CONSISTENT WITH FEE STUDY; AND PROVIDING FOR
6 SEVERABILITY, INCLUSION IN THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, AND AN EFFECTIVE
7 DATE.

8
9 WHEREAS, the various Divisions within the Resilient Environment Department
10 (“RED”) provide services to County residents;

11 WHEREAS, RED is desirous of amending the fees charged for said services
12 consistent with a recent fee study; and

13 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Broward County finds it in the
14 best interest of the citizens of Broward County to amend the fees charged by RED, NOW,
15 THEREFORE,

16 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
17 BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA:

18 Section 1. Chapter 40 of the Broward County Administrative Code is hereby
19 amended to read as follows:

20 **PART I. LAND DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATIONS**

21 **40.1. Fee Schedule.**

22 a. The Board of County Commissioners of Broward County establishes the
23 following fee schedule for administrative processing:

24 *Application Type* *Fee Amount*
25 . . .

26 2. Plat:
27 (a) Standard Plat \$4,330.00
28 (b) Small Plat (municipal, not on a Trafficway)..... \$1,950.00

29 3. TRIPS Report:
30 (a) Informational TRIPS Report, per Site² \$187.00
31 (b) TRIPS Reports for Plats \$280.00

32 Additional Site \$108.00
33 (1) TRIPS Report for Delegation
34 Request to increase Land Use
35 Intensity \$259.00

36 Additional Site \$108.00

37 (2) TRIPS Report for Delegation
38 Request to decrease Land
39 Use Intensity Road Fee
40 Recalculation, per Site \$187.00

41 (c) TRIPS Report for Site Development Plan:
42 (1) Large Projects—If TRIPS Report is
43 required, per Site \$187.00

44 (2) Small Projects, for one (1)

45	single-family unit or one (1) duplex.....	<u>\$36.00</u>
46	(3) All other Projects	<u>\$187.00</u>
47	(d) TRIPS Report for any application subject	
48	to transit concurrency fees	<u>\$200.00</u>
49	Additional Site	<u>\$108.00</u>
50	4. Site Development Plan:	
51	(a) Large Projects (20 or more residential units or 10,000 square feet or	
52	more of nonresidential floor area):	
53	(1) Conceptual	No Charge
54	(2) Final (including amendments	
55	which require full agency review)	\$475 + \$14/Unit
56		or \$2.90/100 square feet of
57		non-residential floor area
58	(3) Amendments which do not	
59	require full agency review	\$158 + \$14/Residential
60		Unit or \$2.90/100 square
61		feet of non-residential floor
62		area
63	(b) Small Projects (Under 20 residential	
64	units or 10,000 square feet of	
65	non-residential floor area)	\$158 + \$14/Unit
66		or \$2.90/100 square feet of
67		non-residential floor area

90	(2)	Plus, per trip of reserve road	
91		capacity the developer is	
92		seeking to have assigned	
93		through the agreement\$1.40
94	(3)	To a maximum of\$17,280.00
95	8.	Environmental Impact Review\$1,613.00
96	9.	Archaeological Review Fee\$655.00
97	10.	Delegation Requests:	
98	(a)	Amend Nonvehicular Access Line:	
99	(1)	Before recordation\$1,220.00
100	(2)	After recordation\$2,410.00
101	(b)	Amend Notation of Plat:	
102	(1)	With full review:	
103	A- a)	Before recordation\$1,420.00
104	B- b)	After recordation\$1,640.00
105	(2)	Without full review:	
106	A- a)	Before recordation\$590.00
107	B- b)	After recordation\$810.00
108	(c)	Building Permit Prior to Plat	
109		Recordation\$346.00
110	(d)	Standard Agreements\$170.00
111	(1)	<u>Recordation:</u>	
112	a)	<u>First Page</u>\$10.00

113	b) <u>Additional pages</u>	<u>\$8.50</u>
114	c) <u>Each name after fourth</u>	
115	<u>(4th) indexing</u>	<u>\$1.00</u>
116	(e) Waiver of Paved Access or	
117	Sidewalk Requirement	No Fee
118	(f) Modify Other Nonroadway-related	
119	Plat Conditions	<u>\$770.00</u>
120	(g) Nonstandard Agreements	<u>\$418.00</u>
121	(h) Modify Other Roadway-related Plat Conditions:	
122	A. <u>(1)</u> Before recordation	<u>\$1,190.00</u>
123	B. <u>(2)</u> After recordation	<u>\$1,730.00</u>
124	11. Development of Regional Impact:	
125	(a) New or Incremental Development Order	<u>\$9,360.00</u>
126	(b) Substantial Deviation	<u>\$8,064.00</u>
127	(c) Nonsubstantial Deviation	<u>\$4,464.00</u>
128	(d) The applicant shall be responsible for	
129	the placement and payment of a	
130	one-quarter page advertisement in a	
131	local newspaper of general	
132	circulation, in a manner approved by	
133	the County Attorney's Office.	
134	12. Request by applicant to defer an item	
135	scheduled for County Commission action	<u>\$166.00</u>

136	13.	Impact Fee Administration:	
137	(a)	Impact fee status letter (for each	
138		half-hour of research) and refunds <u>\$40.00</u>
139	(b)	Security draw (per security draw) <u>\$144.00</u>
140	(c)	Credit ledger update (per credit	
141		ledger update) <u>\$158.00</u>
142	(d)	Lien release (for up to ten (10) lots	
143		in the same plat) <u>\$60.00</u>
144	(e)	Bond release (per bond release) <u>\$144.00</u>
145	(f)	Letter of credit release (per letter	
146		of credit release) <u>\$144.00</u>

147 . . .

148 **PART II. LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENTS, TRAFFICWAYS PLAN**
149 **AMENDMENTS AND WAIVER REQUESTS, RECERTIFICATION OF LOCAL**
150 **LAND USE PLANS AND PLATTING INTERPRETATIONS, WRITTEN PLATTING**
151 **DETERMINATIONS, LAND USE CONFIRMATIONS AND LAND USE**
152 **INTERPRETATIONS PROCESSED BY THE BROWARD COUNTY**
153 **PLANNING COUNCIL**

154 **40.5. Fee Schedule.**

155 a. The following fee schedule is established for administrative processing by the
156 Broward County Planning Council of amendments to the Broward County Land Use Plan,
157 amendments to and waivers of the Broward County Trafficways Plan, recertifications of

158 local municipal land use plans and the Unincorporated Area Land Use Plan, and requests
159 for written platting interpretations:

160 *Fee*

161 . . .

162 2. Recertification of Local Land Use Plan Map
163 Amendments (Per Amendment) \$2,552.00

164 3. Recertification of Local Land Use
165 Plan Text Amendments (Per Text
166 Amendment):

167 (a) Nongovernmental applicant \$100.00

168 (b) Governmental applicant \$0.00

169 4. Broward County Trafficways Plan
170 Amendments \$5,828.00

171 5. Broward County Trafficways Plan Waiver
172 Requests \$5,349.00

173 6. Broward County Planning Council staff
174 written Platting Interpretation (per specific
175 development scenario on a specific parcel of
176 land):

177 All interpretations except those for properties
178 platted after June 4, 1953 (Plat Book 32,
179 Page 15) \$414.00

180 Post June 4, 1953 (Plat Book 32, Page 15)

181	platted properties only	\$144.00
182	7. Broward County Planning Council staff		
183	written Land Use Interpretation	\$337.00
184	8. Broward County Planning Council staff		
185	written Land Use Confirmation	\$195.00
186	...		

PART III. ANIMAL CARE DIVISION

40.9. Animal Care Division Fee Schedule.

The following fee schedule is hereby adopted:

a. *Impound and Board Fees.* Impound and board fees shall be paid by the owner of any dog or cat impounded. Released ear-notched feral or community cats that are part of any established colony shall have impound fees waived. Offenses are determined by the owner's name, not the animal's name. Impound fees are also applicable to dogs and cats redeemed or claimed from quarantine. The Animal Care Division may set up a payment plan for individuals who cannot pay the entire amount of their fees at the time the animal is released. The Director, taking into account: (i) owners who reclaim their dog or cat prior to it being impounded or within twenty-four (24) hours after the animal's arrival, or (ii) owners who meet federal low income guidelines, may decrease or waive the impound and board fees. Additionally, the Director may decrease or waive the impound and board fees under certain circumstances including, but not limited to, overcapacity of the animal shelter and special events, if doing so increases the likelihood of a positive outcome or release for a sheltered animal.

Fee

204	1.	First Impoundment	\$30.00
205	2.	Second Impoundment	\$50.00
206	3.	Third and Subsequent Impoundment	\$150.00
207	4.	Per Diem Boarding Rate	\$20.00
208	5.	Unsterilized <u>Intact</u> Pet Impoundment Fee		
209		(Fee shall be waived if pet owner provides		
210		proof of sterilization to the Division within		
211		thirty (30) days of <u>after</u> impoundment)	150.00 <u>\$250.00</u>
212	6.	<u>Humane Trap Rental Fee (1-week rental period)</u>	\$25.00
213	b.	<i>Adoption Fee for Dogs and Cats.</i> All dog and cat adoption fees include spay		
214		or neuter, initial <u>dewormings</u> , initial vaccines, medical testing, rabies vaccination, microchip		
215		implanting and microchip registration, and County rabies registration tag.		
216	1.	<u>Per animal</u>		
217	(a)	Adoption Fee for Dogs	\$50.00
218	(b)	Adoption Fee for Cats	\$20.00
219	2.	Adoption fee deposit for individuals interested		
220		in adopting an animal which <u>that</u> has not yet		
221		been deemed adoptable. Adopter must fill out		
222		an adoption application and have Division		
223		customer service staff approve the		
224		application before paying the nonrefundable		
225		adoption fee deposit	\$20.00

- 226 3. Two (2) Cats for the Price of One (1)
227 Program. From May 1 through
228 September 30 of each year, individuals may
229 adopt two (2) cats or kittens for a reduced
230 adoption fee \$20.00
231 . . .
- 232 c. *Rabies Registration Tag Fees.*
- 233 1. ~~Sterilized dog~~ Microchipped pet one-year
234 rabies registration tag, four (4) months or
235 older (plus Pet License Sales Agent handling
236 fee not to exceed five dollars (\$5.00)) ~~\$20.00~~ \$25.00
- 237 2. ~~Sterilized Cat~~ Microchipped pet ~~One-Year~~
238 ~~R~~rabies ~~R~~registration tag, four (4) months or
239 older (~~plus Pet License Sales Agent handling~~
240 ~~fee not to exceed five dollars (\$5.00) if~~
241 purchased from Broward County) ~~10.00~~ \$25.00
- 242 3. ~~Sterilized Dog~~ Nonmicrochipped pet
243 ~~One-Year~~ ~~R~~rabies ~~R~~registration tag,
244 four (4) months or older (~~if purchased directly~~
245 ~~from Broward County~~ plus Pet License Sales
246 Agent handling fee not to exceed five dollars
247 (\$5.00)) ~~25.00~~ \$55.00

248	4.	S terilized C at <u>Nonmicrochipped</u> p et	
249		O ne- Y ear R abies R egistration tag,	
250		four (4) months or older (if purchased directly	
251		from Broward County) 15.00 <u>\$55.00</u>
252	5.	U nsterilized D og O ne- Y ear R abies	
253		R egistration tag, four (4) months or older	
254		(plus P et License Sales Agent handling fee	
255		not to exceed five dollars (\$5.00)) 50.00
256	6.	U nsterilized C at O ne- Y ear R abies	
257		R egistration tag, four (4) months or older	
258		(plus P et License Sales Agent handling fee	
259		not to exceed five dollars (\$5.00)) 25.00
260	7.	U nsterilized D og O ne- Y ear R abies	
261		R egistration tag, four (4) months or older (if	
262		purchased directly from Broward County) 55.00
263	8.	U nsterilized C at O ne- Y ear R abies	
264		R egistration tag, four (4) months or older (if	
265		purchased directly from Broward County) 30.00
266	9. <u>5.</u>	G uard D og O ne- Y ear R abies	
267		R egistration T tag (S terilized or	
268		U nsterilized) <u>\$150.00</u>
269	10. <u>6.</u>	D angerous D og O ne- Y ear R abies	
270		R egistration T tag (Sterilized or Unsterilized) 300.00 <u>\$340.00</u>

271	14. <u>7.</u>	Replacement Dog Rabies Registration tag	<u>\$10.00</u>
272	12.	Replacement Cat Rabies Registration tag	<u>5.00</u>
273	13. <u>8.</u>	Replacement Guard Dog Rabies Registration tag	<u>\$30.00</u>
274	14. <u>9.</u>	Replacement Dangerous Dog Rabies Registration tag	<u>\$50.00</u>
275	15.	Service Animal Rabies Registration tag	<u>No Charge</u>
276	16.	Rabies Registration tag through the	
277		Sterilization Voucher Program	<u>No Charge</u>
278	17. <u>10.</u>	Aggressive Dog One-Year Rabies	
279		Registration tag	<u>\$150.00</u>
280	18. <u>11.</u>	Replacement Aggressive Dog Rabies	
281		Registration tag	<u>\$30.00</u>
282	19.	Low Cost Rabies Vaccination and Rabies	
283		Registration tag (if sterilized)	<u>25.00</u>
284	20.	Low Cost Rabies Vaccination and Rabies	
285		Registration tag (if not sterilized)	<u>35.00</u>
286	21. <u>12.</u>	The Director may decrease or waive the	
287		rabies registration tag fee contained in this	
288		subsection in connection with special	
289		programs that encourage spaying and	
290		neutering or if a reduction or waiver ensures	
291		a positive outcome or release for a sheltered	
292		animal.	
293	d.	<i>Late Rabies Registration Tag Renewal Fees.</i>	

294	...		
295	1.	Sterilized/Unsterilized Dog or Cat <u>P</u> et <u>R</u> abies	
296		<u>R</u> egistration tag, four (4) months or older\$10.00
297	2.	Guard <u>D</u> og <u>R</u> abies <u>R</u> egistration tag	
298		(<u>S</u> terilized or <u>U</u> nsterilized)\$25.00
299	3.	Dangerous <u>D</u> og <u>R</u> abies <u>R</u> egistration tag	
300		(<u>S</u> terilized or <u>U</u> nsterilized)\$50.00
301	4.	Aggressive <u>D</u> og <u>R</u> abies <u>R</u> egistration tag\$25.00
302	e.	<i>Special Designation Registration Fees.</i>	
303	1.	Guard <u>D</u> og\$100.00
304	2.	Dangerous <u>D</u> og\$500.00
305	3.	Aggressive <u>D</u> og\$250.00
306	f.	<i>Late Special Designation Registration Fees.</i>	
307	1.	Guard <u>D</u> og (if not registered within	
308		seventy-two (72) hours of <u>a</u> fter acquisition)\$25.00
309	2.	Dangerous Dog (if not registered within	
310		fourteen (14) calendar days of <u>a</u> fter	
311		classification as dangerous, the upholding of	
312		the classification as dangerous, or the setting	
313		up of residence within the County)\$100.00
314	g.	<i>Animal Bite Investigation Fees.</i>	
315	1.	Animal Bite Investigation Fee\$50.00

316	2.	Quarantine Release Fee. (Owner fails to notify	
317		the Division that the bite animal is alive and	
318		healthy; officer must be dispatched to obtain	
319		required information.)\$50.00
320	h.	<i>Bite Animal Transportation Fee.</i> When an	
321		animal has bitten a person or other animal,	
322		and the owner has failed to quarantine the	
323		animal at an approved quarantine facility	
324		within twenty-four (24) hours after	
325		notification of the incident and an officer is	
326		dispatched to transport the animal to the	
327		shelter for quarantine \$75.00
328	i.	<i>Permit Fees.</i>	
329	1.	Guard Dog Owner \$200.00
330	2.	Guard Dog Service \$1,000.00
331	3.	Breeder \$300.00
332	j.	Hearing Officer Fee Deposit (4-12.5,	
333		<u>Broward County Code of Ordinances</u>) \$500.00
334	k.	<i>Civil Penalties.</i> Any person cited for an	
335		infraction of Chapter 4 <u>of the Broward</u>	
336		<u>County Code of Ordinances</u> shall pay a civil	
337		penalty for each infraction. Offenses are	

338	determined by the owner's name, not the	
339	animal's name.	
340	1. Dog at Large (4-3, <u>of the Broward County</u>	
341	<u>Code of Ordinances</u>)	
342	(a) First Offense \$125.00
343	(b) Second and Subsequent Offenses <u>\$200.00</u>
344	2. Bite from Animal (4-3, 4-14.5, and 4-15, <u>of</u>	
345	<u>the Broward County Code of Ordinances</u>)	
346	(a) Each Offense <u>\$500.00</u>
347	(b) Unmuzzled Animal (4-14.5, <u>of the</u>	
348	<u>Broward County Code of</u>	
349	<u>Ordinances</u>) <u>\$500.00</u>
350	3. Failure to Provide Required Care (4-6, <u>of the</u>	
351	<u>Broward County Code of Ordinances</u>)	
352	(a) First Offense <u>\$125.00</u>
353	(b) Second and Subsequent Offenses <u>\$250.00</u>
354	(c) <u>Third and Subsequent Offenses</u>	<u>..... \$500.00</u>
355	4. Permitting an Animal to Commit a Nuisance	
356	(4-8, <u>of the Broward County Code of</u>	
357	<u>Ordinances</u>)	
358	(a) First Offense <u>\$125.00</u>
359	(b) Second and Subsequent Offenses 200.00 <u>\$250.00</u>
360	(c) <u>Third and Subsequent Offenses</u>	<u>..... \$500.00</u>

361	5.	Failure to Provide Required Rabies	
362		Vaccination (4-10, <u>of the Broward County</u>	
363		<u>Code of Ordinances</u>)	
364		Each Offense \$300.00
365	6.	Failure to Register Dog or Cat (4-11, <u>of the</u>	
366		<u>Broward County Code of Ordinances</u>)	
367		Each Offense \$300.00
368	7.	Failure to Register Implanted Microchip	
369		(4-12 and 4-13) 25.00
370	8. <u>7.</u>	Failure to Register Guard Dog (4-13, <u>of</u>	
371		<u>the Broward County Code of Ordinances</u>)	
372		(a) First Offense \$100.00
373		(b) Second and Subsequent Offenses \$150.00
374		(c) <u>Third and Subsequent Offenses</u>	<u>..... \$500.00</u>
375	9. <u>8.</u>	Improper Confinement of Suspected Rabies	
376		Case (4-15, <u>of the Broward County Code of</u>	
377		<u>Ordinances</u>)	
378		(a) First Offense \$150.00
379		(b) Second and Subsequent Offenses \$250.00
380		(c) <u>Third and Subsequent Offenses</u>	<u>..... \$500.00</u>
381	10. <u>9.</u>	Cruelty to Animal (4-8.5 and 4-17, <u>of the</u>	
382		<u>Broward County Code of Ordinances</u>)	
383		First and Subsequent Offense \$500.00

384	41. <u>10.</u>	Exposing Animal to Poison (4-18, <u>of the</u>	
385		<u>Broward County Code of Ordinances)</u>	
386	(a)	First Offense \$250.00
387	(b)	Second and Subsequent Offenses \$500.00
388	42. <u>11.</u>	Abandonment of Animal (4-19, <u>of the</u>	
389		<u>Broward County Code of Ordinances)</u>	
390	(a)	First Offense \$350.00
391	(b)	Second and Subsequent Offenses \$500.00
392	43. <u>12.</u>	Fighting of Animal or Teaching Animal to	
393		Fight (4-20, <u>of the Broward County Code of</u>	
394		<u>Ordinances)</u>	
395		Each Offense \$500.00
396	44. <u>13.</u>	Medical Experimentation (4-21, <u>of the</u>	
397		<u>Broward County Code of Ordinances)</u>	
398		First and Subsequent Offenses \$500.00
399	45. <u>14.</u>	Harboring of Stray Animal (4-23, <u>of the</u>	
400		<u>Broward County Code of Ordinances)</u>	
401	(a)	First Offense \$55.00
402	(b)	Second and Subsequent Offenses \$75.00
403	46. <u>15.</u>	Interference with an Officer (4-25, <u>of the</u>	
404		<u>Broward County Code of Ordinances)</u>	
405	(a)	First Offense \$125.00
406	(b)	Second and Subsequent Offenses \$250.00

407	17.	Ownership of Wild Animal Prohibited (4-16)	
408	(a)	First Offense 125.00
409	(b)	Second and Subsequent Offenses 200.00
410	18. <u>16.</u>	Dog or Cat in Vehicle (4-32, <u>of the Broward</u>	
411		<u>County Code of Ordinances)</u>	
412	(a)	First Offense \$350.00
413	(b)	Second and Subsequent Offenses \$500.00
414	19. <u>17.</u>	Failure to Obtain a Guard Dog Permit (4-13, <u>of the Broward County Code of Ordinances)</u>	
415			
416	(a)	Owner of Guard Dog \$100.00
417	(b)	Operator of Guard Dog Service \$150.00
418	20. <u>18.</u>	Failure to Obtain a Breeder Permit (4-6.5, <u>of the Broward County Code of Ordinances)</u>	
419			
420	(a)	First Offense \$350.00
421	(b)	Second and Subsequent Offenses \$500.00
422	I.	<i>Shelter Veterinarian Service Fees.</i>	
423	1.	Rabies Inoculation Fee \$10.50 <u>\$15.00</u>
424	<u>2.</u>	<u>Microchip</u> <u>\$15.00</u>
425	2. <u>3.</u>	Heartworm Test—Occult 25.00 <u>\$20.00</u>
426	3. <u>4.</u>	Deworming—Oral <u>\$4.00</u>
427	4. <u>5.</u>	Deworming—Injectable <u>\$5.00</u>
428	5. <u>6.</u>	Subcutaneous Fluids—Dogs <u>\$25.00</u>
429	6. <u>7.</u>	Subcutaneous Fluids—Cats <u>\$25.00</u>

430	7. <u>8.</u>	Sedative 8.00 <u>\$10.00</u>
431	8. <u>9.</u>	General Anesthesia \$ 15.00
432	9. <u>10.</u>	Anesthesia—Gas (per hour) \$ 25.00
433	10. <u>11.</u>	Anesthesia—Injectable 10.00 <u>\$20.00</u>
434	11. <u>12.</u>	Canine Parvovirus Test 15.00 <u>\$18.00</u>
435	12. <u>13.</u>	Canine Distemper Vaccine (DA2PPC) \$ 15.00
436	<u>14.</u>	<u>Flea/Tick Prevention</u>	<u>..... \$10.00</u>
437	13. <u>15.</u>	Feline Rhinotracheitis Vaccine (Felocell CVR)	
438		<u>FVRCP (Feline Viral Rhinotracheitis,</u>	
439		<u>Calicivirus, and Panleukopenia) Vaccine</u> \$ 25.00
440	14. <u>16.</u>	Feline Immuno-Deficiency Virus/Feline	
441		Leukemia Virus Test (FIV/FelV) Test \$ 25.00
442	15. <u>17.</u>	Whipworm Treatment \$ 10.00
443	<u>18.</u>	<u>Tapeworm Treatment</u>	<u>..... \$10.00</u>
444	16. <u>19.</u>	Sterilizations for dogs and cats impounded	
445		intact more than two (2) times:	
446		(a) Male Dog.	
447		(1) 1—25 pounds \$ 40.00
448		(2) 26—50 pounds \$ 55.00
449		(3) 51—75 pounds \$ 70.00
450		(4) 76—100 pounds \$ 85.00
451		(5) Over 100 pounds \$ 100.00
452		(b) Female Dog.	

453	(1)	1—25 pounds	\$50.00
454	(2)	26—50 pounds	\$65.00
455	(3)	51—75 pounds	\$80.00
456	(4)	76—100 pounds	\$95.00
457	(5)	Over 100 pounds	\$110.00
458	(c)	Male Cat	\$30.00
459	(d)	Female Cat	\$40.00
460	m.	Cardboard Carriers (when redeeming		
461		impounded animal)	\$5.00
462	n.	<i>Wellness Clinic</i> ; Veterinarian Service Fees.		
463	1.	Vaccines.		
464	(a)	Dogs.		
465	(1)	Vaccine series for six (6) to		
466		seven (7) weeks old, four (4)		
467		visits, including one (1) exam		
468		<u>per visit.</u>		
469	a-)	First visit: DAPP		
470		(Distemper,		
471		Adenovirus, Parvo, and		
472		Parainfluenza),		
473		dewormer, and		
474		microchip (may be		
475		given at later visit,		

476 depending on animal
477 size) \$50.00

478 b-) Second visit: DAPPL
479 (Distemper,
480 Adenovirus, Parvo, and
481 Parainfluenza, ~~and~~
482 Leptospirosis), and
483 Bordetella, and
484 Dewormer \$50.00

485 c-) Third visit: DAPPL
486 (Distemper,
487 Adenovirus, Parvo, and
488 Parainfluenza, ~~and~~
489 Leptospirosis), and
490 Rabies, and Dewormer \$50.00

491 d-) Fourth visit (six (6)
492 months old):
493 Heartworm test and
494 Dewormer \$50.00

495 (2) Vaccine series for eight (8) to
496 fifteen (15) weeks old, four (4)
497 visits, including one (1) exam
498 per visit.

- 499 a-) First visit: DAPPL
500 (Distemper,
501 Adenovirus, Parvo, and
502 Parainfluenza, ~~and~~
503 Leptospirosis),
504 Bordetella, ~~d~~Dewormer,
505 and microchip\$50.00
- 506 b-) Second visit: DAPPL
507 (Distemper,
508 Adenovirus, Parvo, and
509 Parainfluenza, ~~and~~
510 Leptospirosis), and
511 Rabies, and Dewormer\$50.00
- 512 c-) Third visit: DAPP
513 (Distemper,
514 Adenovirus, Parvo, and
515 Parainfluenza) and
516 Dewormer\$50.00
- 517 d-) Fourth visit (six (6)
518 months old):
519 Heartworm test and
520 Dewormer\$50.00
- 521 (3) Vaccine series for sixteen (16)

522 weeks or older, three (3) visits,
523 including one (1) exam per visit.
524 a-) First visit: DAPPL
525 (Distemper,
526 Adenovirus, Parvo, and
527 Parainfluenza, and
528 Leptospirosis), Rabies,
529 Bordetella, microchip,
530 and Dewormer ~~50.00~~ \$100.00
531 b-) Second visit: DAPPL
532 (Distemper,
533 Adenovirus, Parvo, and
534 Parainfluenza, and
535 Leptospirosis) and
536 Dewormer \$50.00
537 c-) Third visit (six (6)
538 months old or older):
539 Heartworm test and
540 Dewormer \$50.00
541 (4) Adult vaccine series,
542 including one (1) exam per
543 visit.

- 544 a-) Year 1: DAPPL
545 (Distemper,
546 Adenovirus, Parvo, and
547 Parainfluenza, ~~and~~
548 Leptospirosis),
549 Bordetella, Rabies,
550 Dewormer, and
551 Heartworm test \$100.00
- 552 b-) Year 2: Bordetella,
553 Leptospirosis
554 Dewormer, and
555 Heartworm test \$50.00
- 556 c-) Year 3: Bordetella,
557 Leptospirosis
558 Dewormer, and
559 Heartworm test \$50.00
- 560 (5) Individual services.
- 561 a) Exam fee \$35.00
- 562 b) DAPP (Distemper,
563 Adenovirus, Parvo, and
564 Parainfluenza) vaccine \$15.00
- 565 c) DAPPL (Distemper,
566 Adenovirus, Parvo,

567		<u>Parainfluenza, _____ and</u>	
568		<u>Leptospirosis) vaccine</u>	<u>.....\$20.00</u>
569	d)	<u>Leptospirosis vaccine</u>	<u>.....\$15.00</u>
570	e)	<u>Bordetella vaccine</u>	<u>.....\$15.00</u>
571	f)	<u>Rabies vaccine (3 years)</u>	<u>.....\$35.00</u>
572	g)	<u>Dewormer</u>	<u>.....\$5.00</u>

(b) Cats.

574 (1) Vaccine series for six (6) to
575 fifteen (15) weeks old, three (3)
576 visits, including one (1) exam
577 per visit.

578 a-) First visit: FVRCP
579 (Feline Viral
580 Rhinotracheitis,
581 Calicivirus, and
582 Panleukopenia), ~~FELV~~
583 (~~Feline~~ Leukemia
584 ~~Virus~~), dDewormer, and
585 microchip (depending
586 on size)\$50.00

587 b-) Second visit: FVRCP
588 (Feline Viral
589 Rhinotracheitis,

613 Rhinotracheitis,
614 Calicivirus,
615 Panleukopenia), ~~FELV~~
616 (~~Feline Leukemia~~
617 ~~Virus~~), and \$50.00

618 (3) Adult vaccine series. Includes
619 one (1) exam per visit:
620 a-) ~~One (1) First~~ visit for
621 FVRCP (Feline Viral
622 Rhinotracheitis,
623 Calicivirus, and
624 Panleukopenia), ~~FELV~~
625 (~~Feline Leukemia~~
626 ~~Virus~~), Dewormer,
627 Rabies, and microchip
628 (first year) 75.00 \$90.00

629 b-) ~~One (1) Second~~ visit for
630 ~~FELV (Feline Leukemia~~
631 ~~Virus) Dewormer~~ 50.00 \$35.00

632 (4) Individual services.
633 a) Exam fee \$35.00
634 b) FVRCP (Feline Viral
635 Rhinotracheitis,

636		<u>Calicivirus, _____ and</u>	
637		<u>Panleukopenia)</u>	
638		<u>vaccine</u>	<u>..... \$15.00</u>
639	c)	<u>FELV (Feline Leukemia</u>	
640		<u>Virus) vaccine</u>	<u>..... \$20.00</u>
641	d)	<u>Rabies _____ vaccine</u>	
642		<u>(three (3) years)</u>	<u>..... \$35.00</u>
643	e)	<u>FELV (Feline Leukemia</u>	
644		<u>Virus) SNAP test</u>	<u>..... \$20.00</u>
645	f)	<u>Dewormer</u>	<u>..... \$5.00</u>
646	(c)	Any additional antiparasitics deemed	
647		necessary by the Wellness Clinic	
648		veterinarian are provided at no	
649		additional cost during vaccine	
650		appointments for cats and dogs.	
651	2.	Microchip implanting	<u>..... \$20.00</u>
652	3.	Heartworm test	<u>..... \$20.00</u>
653	4.	Heartworm preventive (requires negative	
654		heartworm test). Prices are set by the Animal	
655		Care and Adoption Division and are	
656		dependent on type of animal (dog or cat) and	
657		animal weight	<u>..... \$30.00 to \$80.00</u>

658 5. Flea and tick treatment. Price is dependent
 659 on type of animal (dog or cat) and animal
 660 weight \$20.00 to \$100.00

661 6. Sterilization services.

662 (a) Dogs.

663 (1)

	Male	Female
665 3—30 lbs.	<u>\$80.00</u>	<u>\$100.00</u>
666 31—60 lbs.	<u>\$100.00</u>	<u>\$150.00</u>
667 60—100 lbs.	<u>\$150.00</u>	<u>\$200.00</u>

668 (2) Pricing for dogs above one hundred (100) pounds is dependent
 669 on market rates, with the awareness of the low-cost nature of
 670 the clinic and the need for affordable surgeries.

671 (b) Cats.

672 (1) Male \$30.00

673 (2) Female \$50.00

674 (3) For community cats, the pricing is dependent on market rates,
 675 with awareness of the community need for low-cost surgeries
 676 for free-roaming cats.

677 7. Euthanasia. Performance of procedure is
 678 subject to the sole discretion of the County
 679 veterinarian. \$50.00

680 . . .

681 **40.10. Animal Care Division Waiver.**

682 (a) ~~The Board of County Commissioners hereby waives the fees pursuant to~~
683 ~~Section 40.9.c, Broward County Administrative Code, for rabies registration tags for~~
684 ~~inoculated dogs and cats of individuals who meet federal low income guidelines.~~

685 (b) Subject to the availability of third-party funding from grants and donations, the
686 Director of the Animal Care Division is authorized by the Board of County Commissioners
687 to waive the Wellness Clinic fees provided in Section 40.9.n of the Administrative Code,
688 when working toward established Animal Care Division goals of population abatement and
689 the prevention or containment of disease spread.

690 **PART IV. DOCUMENT FEES, RESILIENT ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT**

691 **40.13. Certain Documents.**

692 a. The Board of County Commissioners establishes the following fee schedule
693 for certain Broward County documents:

694 . . .

695 Maps up to <u>thirty-six (36)</u> inches in width \$5.00
696 Maps greater than <u>thirty-six (36)</u> inches in width <u>\$20.00</u>
697 . . .	

698 **40.14. County Zoning Code.**

699 The County Zoning Code will be ordered from and distributed by the ~~Municode of~~
700 ~~Tallahassee, Florida~~ Municipal Code Corporation, pursuant to that certain existing contract
701 at the following service fee which shall be charged to all persons desiring copies and
702 supplements:

703 *Fee*

- 704 a. Reprinted code with all up-to-date Supplements..... \$15.00
- 705 b. Annual Supplements \$10.00
- 706 . . .

PART V. FEE SCHEDULE

40.23. Resilient Environment Department Fee Schedule.

The following fees for Chapter 27 of the Broward County Code of Ordinances and for any program(s) delegated to, contracted to, or carried out by the Resilient Environment Department pursuant to federal or State statute, rule, or regulation are established:

Fee

a. ~~The Fee Schedule for Section 27-132, et~~
seq., "Application for Variance," is \$250.00

b. ~~The Fee Schedule for Section 27-66, "Environmental Review Approval of~~
Municipal and County Building Permits," ~~is as follows:~~

- 717 1. "Residencies" per home unit \$55.00
- 718 2. "Hotels and Motels" per unit bedroom \$55.00
- 719 3. "Equivalent Residential Connection" (ERC)
- 720 design flow per structure \$55.00
- 721 4. Minimum "Approval Fee" per structure \$55.00

c. ~~The Fee Schedule for Subsection 27-67(a) "Land Development Code,"~~ is as follows:

~~Site plan (conceptual, preliminary or final) 72.00~~ Reserved.

d. ~~The Fee Schedule for Subsection 27-176(c)(1) is as follows,~~ Air Quality License:

727 1. Air Quality License, per emission unit, ~~per~~
 728 every two (2) years \$200.00

729 2. Air Quality License transfer \$100.00

730 The Resilient Environment Department shall review the air license fees at
 731 least once every five (5) years and adjust the fees upward, as necessary, to
 732 reflect changes in the Consumer Price Index or similar inflation indicator.

733 e. ~~The Fee Schedule for Section 27-201, "Authorization," for Article V, "Water~~
 734 ~~Resource Management," is as follows:~~

735 1. ~~For Subsection 27-201(a), "Domestic~~
 736 ~~Wastewater," for Subsection 27-201(a)(2),~~
 737 "License Transfer Fee" ~~250.00~~ \$375.00

738 2. ~~For Subsection 27-201(a)(4), "Sanitary~~
 739 ~~Sewers Fee," at a minimum fee of~~ ~~240.00~~ \$315.00

740 (a) Gravity and force mains:
 741 (1) Per running foot ~~0.30~~ \$0.45

742 (2) Per underground utility access
 743 portal ~~50.00~~ \$75.00

744 (b) Pump Stations and Lift Stations:
 745 (1) Per well ~~170.00~~ \$255.00

746 (2) Plus the following fees based on horsepower:
 747 *Horsepower*

748 a) Up to and including 5 ~~\$140.00~~ \$210.00

749	b)	Greater than 5, but less	
750		than 15 260.00 <u>\$390.00</u>
751	c)	15 or greater, but less	
752		than 45 420.00 <u>\$630.00</u>
753	d)	45 or greater, but less	
754		than 65 530.00 <u>\$795.00</u>
755	e)	65 or greater, but less	
756		than 125 700.00 <u>\$1,050.00</u>
757	f)	125 or greater, but less	
758		than 200 800.00 <u>\$1,200.00</u>
759	g)	200 or greater 1,060 <u>\$1,590.00</u>

760	(c)	Record Drawing Review Fee 100.00 <u>\$150.00</u>
761	(d)	License Extension Fee 240.00 <u>\$315.00</u>

762 3. For Subsection 27-201(a)(5), "Wastewater Treatment Plants Fee":

763 (a) Proposed Wastewater Treatment Plants Construction Phase License
764 Fee:

765	(1)	Per gallon of design capacity 0.05 <u>\$0.075</u>
766	(2)	Minimum fee shall not be less	
767		than 500.00 <u>\$750.00</u>
768	(3)	Maximum fee no more than 8,200.00 <u>\$12,300.00</u>

769 (b) Proposed Modifications License Fee:

770	(1)	Proposed modification or		
771		revision that does not change		
772		design capacity 900.00	<u>\$1,350.00</u>
773	(2)	Modification to Advanced Wastewater Treatment or Spray		
774		Irrigation:		
775	a)	Per gallon of design		
776		capacity (17 mills) 0.017	<u>\$0.0255</u>
777	b)	This fee shall not be		
778		less than 165.00	<u>\$247.50</u>
779	c)	Per <u>This fee shall not</u>		
780		<u>be more than</u> 3,280.00	<u>\$4,920.00</u>
781	(c)	"Renewals" of Operating or		
782		Construction Phase of License 2,500.00	<u>\$3,250.00</u>
783	(d)	Operating Phase of License for		
784		Wastewater Treatment Plants 1,900.00	<u>\$2,470.00</u>
785	4.	For Subsection 27-201(a)(6), "Plat and Site		
786		Plan Application Review Fees" 70.00	<u>\$105.00</u>
787	5.	For Subsection 27-201(a)(7), "Reuse Application Systems," at a minimum of		
788		\$210.00 <u>\$315.00</u> , is as follows:		
789	(a)	Distribution systems and reuse force mains:		
790	(1)	Per running foot 0.30	<u>\$0.45</u>
791	(2)	Per underground utility access		
792		portal 50.00	<u>\$75.00</u>

793	(b)	Pump stations (the following fees are based on horsepower):	
794	(1)	Up to and including 5 170.00 <u>\$255.00</u>
795	(2)	Greater than 5, but less than	
796		15 260.00 <u>\$390.00</u>
797	(3)	<u>15</u> or G greater than 15 , but	
798		less than 45 420.00 <u>\$630.00</u>
799	(4)	<u>45</u> or G greater than 45 , but	
800		less than 65 530.00 <u>\$795.00</u>
801	(5)	<u>65</u> or G greater than 65 , but	
802		less than 125 700.00 <u>\$1,050.00</u>
803	(6)	<u>125</u> or G greater than 125 , but	
804		less than 200 800.00 <u>\$1,200.00</u>
805	(7)	<u>200</u> or G greater than 200 1,060.00 <u>\$1,590.00</u>
806	(c)	Record Drawing review fee 100.00 <u>\$150.00</u>
807	(d)	Extensions and Renewals of licenses 210.00 <u>\$315.00</u>
808	6.	The Fee Schedule for Subsection 27-201(b), "Nondomestic Wastewater," is	
809		as follows (License Fee based on designed wastewater flows, gallons per	
810		day):	
811	(a)	Up to and including 5,000 480.00 <u>\$720.00</u>
812	(b)	5,001 to 10,000 1,100.00 <u>\$1,650.00</u>
813	(c)	10,001 to 25,000 1,900.00 <u>\$2,850.00</u>
814	(d)	Greater than 25,000 2,550.00 <u>\$3,825.00</u>

815 f. ~~The Fee Schedule for Subsection 27-216(b)(1), "Solid Waste Management,"~~
816 ~~is as follows:~~

817 1. Construction/Operation License Fee for solid waste management facilities,
818 except for the following: borrow pit reclamation areas and government-owned
819 or operated transfer stations ~~which~~ that solely receive bulky wastes and
820 vegetative debris from households.

821	(a)	License Fee (5 years)	6,000.00	<u>\$7,200.00</u>
822	(b)	License minor modifications	250.00	<u>\$300.00</u>
823	(c)	License intermediate modifications	1,500.00	<u>\$1,800.00</u>
824	(d)	License substantial modifications	3,000.00	<u>\$3,600.00</u>

825 2. Construction/Operation License ~~f~~ee for government-owned and operated
826 transfer stations ~~which~~ that solely receive bulky wastes from households and
827 vegetative and clean wood processing facilities.

828	(a)	License Fee (5 years)	3,000.00	<u>\$3,600.00</u>
829	(b)	License minor modifications	250.00	<u>\$300.00</u>
830	(c)	License intermediate modifications	500.00	<u>\$600.00</u>
831	(d)	License substantial modifications	1,000.00	<u>\$1,200.00</u>

832 3. Construction/Operation License ~~f~~ee for borrow pit reclamation areas.

833	(a)	Projects equal to or less than			
834		1,000 cubic yards of fill material			
835		<u>(five (5) years)</u>	1,000.00	<u>\$1,200.00</u>
836	(b)	Projects with 1,001 to 10,000 cubic			
837		yards of fill material <u>(five (5) years)</u>	2,000.00	<u>\$2,400.00</u>

838	(c)	Projects with 10,001 to 100,000 cubic	
839		yards of fill material (<u>five (5)</u> years) 3,000.00 <u>\$3,600.00</u>
840	(d)	Projects with greater than 100,000	
841		cubic yards of fill material (<u>five (5)</u>	
842		years) 6,000.00 <u>\$7,200.00</u>
843	(e)	License modifications 250.00 <u>\$300.00</u>
844	4.	Transfer of License 100.00 <u>\$120.00</u>

845 g. ~~The Fee Schedule for Subsection 27-284(f)(2) "Land Clearing Open Burn~~

846 License," is as follows:

847	1.	Basic Fee <u>115.00</u>
848	2.	Plus per acre <u>6.00</u>

849 h. g. ~~The Fee Schedule for Subsection 27-306(b)(4), "Storage Tanks," is as~~
850 follows:

851	1.	The annual fee to operate or maintain an	
852		out-of-service status for a hazardous	
853		material storage tank facility shall be	
854		<u>sixty-five percent (65%)</u> percent of the	
855		amount calculated from the schedule in	
856		Subsection h.4. below based on the number	
857		and capacity of tank systems to be operated	
858		or maintained in an out-of-service status at	
859		the facility, but shall not be less than \$90.00 <u>\$99.00</u>

860 2. The fee to construct or modify a hazardous
 861 material storage tank facility shall be
 862 one hundred percent (100%) ~~percent~~ of the
 863 amount calculated from the schedule in
 864 Subsection h.4. below based on the number
 865 of tank systems to be constructed or
 866 modified at the facility, but shall not be less
 867 than ~~\$155.00~~ \$170.50

868 3. The fee to close a hazardous material
 869 storage tank facility shall be one hundred
 870 eighty-five percent (185%) ~~percent~~ of the
 871 amount calculated from the schedule in
 872 Subsection h.4. below based on the number
 873 and capacity of tank systems to be closed at
 874 the facility, but shall not be less than ~~\$90.00~~ \$99.00

875 4. Storage Tank System Fee schedule:

<i>Tank Capacity (Gallons)</i>	<i>Fee per Tank</i>
876 (a) 0 to 1,000 \$25.00 <u>\$27.50</u>
877 (b) 1,001 to 5,000 35.00 <u>\$38.50</u>
878 (c) 5,001 to 7,500 75.00 <u>\$82.50</u>
879 (d) 7,501 to 10,000 115.00 <u>\$126.50</u>
880 (e) 10,001 to 75,000 270.00 <u>\$297.00</u>
881 (f) 75,001 to 150,000 385.00 <u>\$423.50</u>

883	(g)	150,001 to 350,000	540.00	<u>\$594.00</u>
884	(h)	Greater than 350,000	775.00	<u>\$852.50</u>
885	5.	The fee to transfer a h Hazardous material			
886		storage tank facility license shall be <u>transfer</u>			
887		<u>fee</u>	400.00	<u>\$110.00</u>
888	6.	The a <u>Annual fee to operate operation fee for</u>			
889		a Stage II Vapor Recovery System at a			
890		hazardous material storage tank facility, per			
891		gasoline tank	55.00	<u>\$60.50</u>
892	i. h.	The Fee Schedule for Article XI, "Aquatic and Wetland Resource Protection,"			
893		is as follows:			
894	1.	For Section 27-336, "General Licenses"	100.00	<u>\$200.00</u>
895	2.	Items 3 through 7 below refer to licenses			
896		issued pursuant to Section 27-334. If a			
897		project licensed under items 3 through 7			
898		contains wetlands or other aquatic			
899		resources, add one hundred percent (100%)			
900		to the license fee.			
901	3.	Maintenance dredging or project equal to or			
902		less than <u>one hundred (100)</u> cubic yards of			
903		dredged and fill material; installation of			
904		buoys or aids to navigation <u>or temporary</u>			
905		<u>scientific research project</u>	250.00	<u>\$375.00</u>

- 906 4. Projects with greater than one hundred (100)
907 cubic yards to equal to or less than
908 one thousand (1,000) cubic yards of
909 dredged and fill material; marina or dockage
910 facility equal to or less than
911 ten thousand (10,000) square feet over
912 water surface area; seawall equal to or less
913 than two hundred (200) feet in total length;
914 installation of subaqueous transmission or
915 distribution lines with equal to or less than
916 one thousand (1,000) cubic yards of
917 dredged and fill material ~~450.00~~ \$675.00
- 918 5. Projects with greater than
919 one thousand (1,000) cubic yards to equal to
920 or less than ten thousand (10,000) cubic
921 yards of dredged and fill material; marina or
922 dockage facility with greater than
923 ten thousand (10,000) square feet over
924 water surface area; seawall greater than
925 two hundred (200) feet in total length ~~800.00~~ \$1,200.00
- 926 6. Projects with greater than
927 ten thousand (10,000) cubic yards to equal
928 to or less than one hundred thousand

929	(100,000) cubic yards of dredged and fill		
930	material	2,000.00 <u>\$3,000.00</u>
931	7. Projects with greater than		
932	<u>one hundred thousand (100,000)</u> cubic		
933	yards of dredged and fill material	4,000.00 <u>\$6,000.00</u>
934	8. Request for License Transfer	100.00 <u>\$150.00</u>
935	9. Request for License Modification	100.00 <u>\$150.00</u>
936	10. Mitigation Fee: the annual fee shall be		
937	forty percent (40%) of the total initial license		
938	fee and shall be submitted prior to license		
939	issuance. ⁶⁺		
940	11. Wetland Jurisdiction Determinations will be		
941	performed subsequent to the receipt of a		
942	written request accompanied by the		
943	following processing fees:		
944	(a) For parcels less than or equal to		
945	two (2) acres	35.00 <u>\$100.00</u>
946	(b) Every additional acre or portion		
947	thereof, over two (2) acres	30.00 <u>\$50.00</u>

948 j. l. ~~The Fee Schedule for Sections 27-401 through 27-414, "Tree Preservation~~
949 and Abuse," is as follows:

950 1. "Tree Removal License" fee:

⁶ In-county mitigation projects are subject to this fee each year for their five-year monitoring period.

951		Developed Single-	All Other Developed	All Other
952		Family or Duplex	Residential	Property
953		Residential	Occupied Property	
954		Property		
955	(a) For the Initial Tree Removal License	\$75.00 <u>100.00</u>	\$400.00 <u>150.00</u>	\$450.00 <u>250.00</u>
956	(b) Plus, for each tree <u>less than 18" dbh</u>			
957	proposed to be removed or relocated,			
958	less than 18" dbh	<u>\$25.00</u>	<u>\$25.00</u>	<u>\$25.00</u>
959	(c) Plus, for each tree <u>18" dbh and over</u>			
960	proposed to be removed and			
961	relocated 18" dbh and over	<u>\$50.00</u>	<u>\$50.00</u>	<u>\$50.00</u>
962	(d) Plus, for each tree <u>having a dbh less</u>			
963	<u>than 18" that is removed or relocated</u>			
964	prior to obtaining a Tree Removal			
965	License having a dbh less than 18"	<u>\$50.00</u>	<u>\$50.00</u>	<u>\$50.00</u>
966	(e) Plus, for each tree <u>having a dbh of</u>			
967	<u>18" or greater that is removed or</u>			
968	relocated prior to obtaining a Tree			
969	Removal License having a dbh of 18"			
970	or greater	<u>\$100.00</u>	<u>\$100.00</u>	<u>\$100.00</u>
971	2. "Tree Removal License Modification" fee:			
972	(a) For a m Modification of a license	 75.00 <u>\$100.00</u>	
973	(b) Plus, for each additional tree proposed to be removed or relocated:			
974				
975		Developed	All Other	All Other
976		Single-	Developed	Property

	Family or Duplex Residential Property	Residential Occupied Property	
977			
978			
979			
980			
981	(1) Less than 18" dbh	\$25.00	\$25.00
982	(2) 18" dbh and over	\$50.00	\$50.00
983	(3) Each tree <u>having a dbh less than 18" that is</u>		
984	removed or relocated prior to obtaining a Tree		
985	Removal License Modification having a dbh		
986	less than 18"	\$50.00	\$50.00
987	(4) Each tree <u>having a dbh of 18" or greater that is</u>		
988	removed or relocated prior to obtaining		
989	a Tree Removal License Modification having a dbh		
990	of 18" or greater	\$100.00	\$100.00

k. j. ~~The Schedule of Fees for Article XII, "Hazardous Material" is as follows:~~

1. ~~For all~~ Section 27-356, "Initial License Application" ~~85.00~~ \$93.50
2. ~~For all~~ Section 27-356, "License Transfer Requests" ~~100.00~~ \$110.00
3. ~~For all~~ Section 27-356, "License Modification Requests" ~~95.00~~ \$104.50
4. ~~For~~ Subsection 27-356(b), "Hazardous Material Facility Operating License":

(a) Source Category Initial Fees (Annual):

Source Category	Initial Fee	Renewal Fee
-----------------	-------------	-------------

1003	(1)	Category One-A	\$285.00	<u>\$313.50</u>	\$160.00	<u>\$176.00</u>
1004	(2)	Category One-B	345.00	<u>\$379.50</u>	220.00	<u>\$242.00</u>
1005	(3)	Category One-C	405.00	<u>\$445.50</u>	285.00	<u>\$313.50</u>
1006	(4)	Category Two-A	380.00	<u>\$418.00</u>	255.00	<u>\$280.50</u>
1007	(5)	Category Two-B	440.00	<u>\$484.00</u>	315.00	<u>\$346.50</u>
1008	(6)	Category Two-C	505.00	<u>\$555.50</u>	380.00	<u>\$418.00</u>
1009	(7)	Category Three-A	475.00	<u>\$522.50</u>	345.00	<u>\$379.50</u>
1010	(8)	Category Three-B	535.00	<u>\$588.50</u>	405.00	<u>\$445.50</u>
1011	(9)	Category Three-C	600.00	<u>\$660.00</u>	475.00	<u>\$522.50</u>
1012	(10)	Category Four-A	565.00	<u>\$621.50</u>	440.00	<u>\$484.00</u>
1013	(11)	Category Four-B	625.00	<u>\$687.50</u>	505.00	<u>\$555.50</u>
1014	(12)	Category Four-C	695.00	<u>\$764.50</u>	565.00	<u>\$621.50</u>

1015 . . .

1016 5. For Subsection 27-356(c), "Licenses for Sludge, Discarded Hazardous
1017 Material and Biomedical Waste Transfer Stations":

1018 *Fee*

1019 (a) Construction License Fee ~~\$500.00~~ \$600.00

1020 (b) Operation License ~~\$520.00~~ \$624.00

1021 6. For Section 27-439, "Waste Transporter License Requirements and
1022 Standards":

1023 (a) Application fee ~~55.00~~ \$100.00

1024	(b)	Renewal fee ⁷	25.00 <u>\$50.00</u>
1025	(c)	<u>License modification (waste type,</u>		
1026		<u>name change, add/remove truck, etc.)</u>	<u>\$50.00</u>
1027	(e) (d)	Operating License fees:		
1028	(1)	Used oil, radiator fluid, and		
1029		nonhazardous industrial		
1030		waste, per gallon	0.002 <u>\$0.007</u>
1031		After October 1, 2005	0.004
1032		After October 1, 2007	0.006
1033	(2)	Sludge, per gallon	0.003 <u>\$0.004</u>
1034	(3)	Hazardous waste and waste		
1035		photo chemical, per gallon	0.033 <u>\$0.035</u>
1036	(4)	Dry sludge, per short ton	1.07 <u>\$1.09</u>
1037	(5)	Contaminated soils, per short		
1038		ton	0.72 <u>\$0.75</u>
1039	(6)	Medical waste and		
1040		nonhazardous industrial		
1041		waste	0.72 <u>\$0.75</u>
1042	7.	For Subsection 27-356(d), "Environmental Assessment and Remediation		
1043		Licenses":		
1044	(a)	For nonresidential facilities	2,000.00 <u>\$3,000.00</u>

⁷Fee to be waived if no violations of Chapter 27 occur in the preceding license year.

1045	(b)	For residential facilities	390.00	<u>\$500.00</u>
1046	8.	For Subsection 27-356(4)(f) <u>27-354(f)</u> ,			
1047		“Public Used Oil Collection Facility			
1048		Regulation” <u>Activity Exemption</u>		NO FEE
1049	9.	For Subsection 27-356(e)(1), “Utility			
1050		Electrical Equipment Special			
1051		License” the annual fee shall be	13,000	<u>\$14,300.00</u>
1052	10.	For Subsection 27-356(e)(2),			
1053		“Telecommunication Utility VRLA			
1054		Battery Special License” the annual			
1055		per facility fee shall be	55.00	<u>\$60.50</u>
1056	11.	<u>For Section 27-353(i) or 27-355(e),</u>			
1057		<u>Review of proposed dewatering</u>			
1058		<u>operations within one quarter (1/4) mile</u>			
1059		<u>of a contaminated site</u>		<u>\$400.00</u>
1060	f. k.	The Schedule of Annual Fees for Article XIII, “Hazardous Material Wellfield			
1061		License” is as follows:			
1062	1.	For a <u>All</u> of Sections 27-382 through 27-384,			
1063		“Initial License Applications”	90.00	<u>\$99.00</u>
1064	2.	For a <u>All</u> of Sections 27-382 through 27-384,			
1065		“License Transfer Requests”	100.00	<u>\$110.00</u>
1066	3.	For a <u>All</u> of Sections 27-382 through 27-384,			
1067		“License Modification Requests”	90.00	<u>\$99.00</u>

1068
1069
1070
1071
1072
1073
1074
1075
1076
1077
1078
1079
1080
1081
1082
1083
1084
1085
1086
1087
1088
1089
1090

4. ~~For all~~ Subsection 27-384(b), “Hazardous Material Wellfield License Fee” ~~is as follows:~~
(Same schedule of fees as for Section 27-356 above.)
5. ~~For~~ Subsection 27-384(c), “Hazardous Material Wellfield Closure Fee” 405.00 \$445.50
6. ~~For~~ Closure License ~~of the type in~~, Subsection 27-382(a)-(1), ~~the fee shall be~~ one quarter (1/4) of the operating license fee specified for Subsection 27-384(b) licenses.
7. ~~For~~ Subsection 27-384(d), “Special Exemption Fee” 140.00 \$154.00

m. l. ~~The Fee schedule for~~ Subsection 27-201(c), “Surface Water Management License,” ~~is as follows:~~

1. ~~For~~ Subsection 27-201(c)(1), “Surface Water Management License and Letter of Conceptual Approval Fees”:
- | <i>Project Size (Acres)</i> | <i>Application Fee</i> |
|---------------------------------------|---|
| (a) 40 or less | \$1,500.00 <u>\$2,250.00</u> |
| (b) Greater than 40 but less than 100 | 3,840.00 <u>\$5,760.00</u> |
| (c) Greater than 100 | 5,530.00 <u>\$8,295.00</u> |
2. ~~For~~ Subsection 27-201(c)(1), “Modification of Surface Water Management License and Modification of Letter of Conceptual Approval Fees”:
- | <i>Project Size (Acres)</i> | <i>Application Fee</i> |
|-----------------------------|------------------------|
|-----------------------------|------------------------|

1091	(a)	40 or less	\$1,000.00	<u>\$1,500.00</u>
1092	(b)	Greater than 40 but less than 100	2,530.00	<u>\$3,795.00</u>
1093	(c)	Greater than 100	3,650.00	<u>\$5,475.00</u>
1094	3.	For Subsection 27-201(c)(2), "License Renewal Fees," <u>fifty percent (50%)</u> of			
1095		initial application fee:			
1096		<i>Project Size (Acres)</i>		<i>Application Fee</i>	
1097	(a)	But not less than	\$750.00	<u>\$1,125.00</u>
1098	(b)	Maximum renewal fee	2,000.00	<u>\$3,000.00</u>
1099	4.	For Subsection 27-201(c)(3), "General			
1100		License Fee," including application fee	250.00	<u>\$375.00</u>
1101	5.	For Subsection 27-201(c)(4), "Plan Review Fees":			
1102	(a)	With drive	35.00	<u>\$52.50</u>
1103	(b)	Without drive	45.00	<u>\$22.50</u>
1104	6.	For Subsection 27-201(c)(5), "Transfer of			
1105		License Fee"	400.00	<u>\$150.00</u>
1106	7.	For Subsection 27-201(c)(6), "License			
1107		Extension Fee"	100.00	<u>\$150.00</u>
1108	8.	For Subsection 27-201(c)(7), "Partial/Phase			
1109		Certification Fee"	100.00	<u>\$150.00</u>
1110	9.	For Subsection 27-201(c)(8), "Reinspection			
1111		Fee"	100.00	<u>\$150.00</u>

1112 n. m. Applicable fees, as set forth in this section, may be waived or reduced as
 1113 provided by Section 27.237 of this Code for the development of affordable housing.

1114 e. n. ~~The Fee Schedule~~ for Subsection 27-180(b), “Asbestos demolition and
1115 renovation notification requirements,” is as follows fees:

1116 1. For Subsection 27-180(b)(1):

1117 Review of Statement of Responsibilities

1118 Regarding Asbestos for nonresidential

1119 buildings and structures and residential

1120 buildings having more than four (4) dwelling

1121 units ~~\$50.00~~ \$100.00

1122 (a) After the fact – SRRA \$200.00

1123 (b) After the fact Notification Fee \$1,000.00

1124 2. For Subsection 27-180(b)(2):

1125 There are separate fees for asbestos removal projects and demolition

1126 projects.

1127 Asbestos Removal Projects Fees:

1128 ~~160 to 420 Square Feet~~ ~~200.00~~

1129 ~~260 to 420 Linear Feet~~ ~~200.00~~

1130 ~~421 to 3,000 Square Feet or Linear Feet~~ ~~400.00~~

1131 ~~3,001 to 5,500 Square Feet or Linear Feet~~ ~~600.00~~

1132 ~~5,501 to 8,000 Square Feet or Linear Feet~~ ~~800.00~~

1133 ~~Greater than 8,000 Square Feet or Linear Feet~~ ~~1,000.00~~

1134 ~~35 to 45 Cubic Feet~~ ~~200.00~~

1135 ~~46 to 54 Cubic Feet~~ ~~500.00~~

1136 ~~55 to 64 Cubic Feet~~ ~~800.00~~

1137	Greater than 64 Cubic Feet 1,000.00
1138	Asbestos Roofing Removal Projects:	
1139	Less than 10,000 Square Feet 100.00
1140	<u>Electronic Notification via FDEP Business</u>	
1141	<u>Portal</u>	<u>.....</u> \$250.00
1142	<u>Submittal of Adobe PDF or Paper Notifications</u>	<u>.....</u> \$300.00
1143	Built-up Roofing Removal E qual to or	
1144	G reater T han <u>five thousand five hundred</u>	
1145	<u>eighty (5,580) S</u> quare F eet if U sing a	
1146	R otating B lade R oof C utter or O ther	
1147	E quipment that S sands, G rinds, C uts, or	
1148	A brades;	
1149	<u>Electronic Notification via FDEP's Business</u>	
1150	<u>Portal</u>	<u>.....</u> \$200.00
1151	<u>Submittal of Adobe PDF or Paper</u>	
1152	<u>Notifications</u>	<u>.....</u> \$250.00
1153	Demolition Projects <u>Fees</u> :	
1154	Less Than 30,001 Square Feet 250.00
1155	30,001–50,000 Square Feet 500.00
1156	50,001–70,000 Square Feet 750.00
1157	Greater than 70,000 Square Feet 1,000.00
1158	<u>Electronic Submittal via FDEP's Business</u>	
1159	<u>Portal</u>	<u>.....</u> \$250.00

1160 Submittal of Adobe PDF or Paper Notifications \$300.00

1161 Fees for Mobile Home Demolition or Renovation Projects:

1162 Mobile Homes (Per Unit) \$100.00

1163 Mobile Homes (maximum per demolition phase)..... \$1,000.00

1164 p. o. ~~The fee schedule for e~~Environmental sampling and analytical services
1165 provided by the Environmental Monitoring Laboratory to other governmental or
1166 quasi-governmental agencies is as follows:

1167 *Procedure and Method* *Fee*

1168 *Standard Analysis*

1169 1. Ammonia EPA 351.1 ~~\$18.00~~ \$22.00

1170 2. Biochemical Oxygen Demand SM 5210B ~~26.00~~ \$16.00

1171 3. Chemical Oxygen Demand EPA 410.4 ~~23.00~~ \$16.00

1172 4. Chloride By Titration SM_4500CL-C \$15.00

1173 5. Chloride By ~~Spectrophometer~~ Spectrophotometer..... \$16.00

1174 6. Chlorophyll-A, Fluorometric SM 10200H \$18.00

1175 7. Chlorophyll YSI PROBE \$7.00

1176 8. Conductivity, Salinity SM 2510B/EPA 120.1 \$9.00

1177 9. Dissolved Solids SM 2540C \$17.00

1178 10. Nitrite + Nitrate EPA 353.2 ~~18.00~~ \$22.00

1179 (Upon request Nitrate calculation is included
1180 if Nitrite is also analyzed.)

1181 11. Nitrite EPA 353.2 ~~18.00~~ \$22.00

1182 12. Nitrogen, Ammonia EPA 350.1 ~~18.00~~ \$22.00

1183	<u>13.</u>	<u>Total Nitrogen Calculated TKN+NOX</u>	<u>..... \$19.00</u>
1184	<u>14.</u>	<u>Oil and Grease EPA 1664A</u>	<u>..... \$93.00</u>
1185	<u>15.</u>	<u>Oxygen, Dissolved, Probe SM 4500OG</u>	<u>..... \$15.00</u>
1186	13. <u>16.</u>	O-Phosphate EPA 365.1 18.00 <u>\$22.00</u>
1187	44. <u>17.</u>	Percent Solid SM_2540G <u>\$17.00</u>
1188	45. <u>18.</u>	pH, Probe SM_4500H+B 7.00 <u>\$16.00</u>
1189	<u>19.</u>	<u>Silica as SiO2 SM 4500</u>	<u>..... \$22.00</u>
1190	16. <u>20.</u>	Secci Depth EPA 842-B-93-004 <u>\$6.00</u>
1191	17. <u>21.</u>	Suspended Solids SM 2540D 14.00 <u>\$16.00</u>
1192	18. <u>22.</u>	Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen EPA 351.2 <u>\$24.00</u>
1193	19. <u>23.</u>	Total Organic Carbon (TOC) <u>\$23.00</u>
1194	20. <u>24.</u>	Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons EPA1664 <u>\$51.00</u>
1195	21. <u>25.</u>	Total Phosphorus EPA 365.4 <u>\$24.00</u>
1196	22. <u>26.</u>	Total Solids SM_2540B <u>\$17.00</u>
1197	23. <u>27.</u>	Turbidity EPA 180.1 12.00 <u>\$16.00</u>
1198	24. <u>28.</u>	Turbidity YSI PROBE <u>\$7.00</u>
1199		<i>Metals Analysis (Aqueous/Solid)</i>	
1200	25. <u>29.</u>	Metals by ICP/MS per metal <u>\$25.00</u>
1201		...	
1202		<i>Gas and Liquid Chromatography</i>	
1203	26. <u>30.</u>	Chlorinated Herbicides SW 846 8151 <u>\$220.00</u>
1204	27. <u>31.</u>	Organochlorine Pesticides SW 846 8081	
1205		NC <u>\$121.00</u>

1206	28. <u>32.</u>	Organochlorine Pesticides SW 846 8081	\$178.00
1207	29. <u>33.</u>	Organochlorine Pesticides (Solids) SW 846		
1208		8081 NC	\$121.00
1209	30. <u>34.</u>	Organochlorine Pesticides (Solids) SW 846		
1210		8081	\$189.00
1211	31. <u>35.</u>	Organo phosphorous Pesticides SW 846		
1212		8141	\$190.00
1213	32. <u>36.</u>	Organo phosphorous Pesticides SW 846		
1214		8141 NC	\$145.00
1215	33. <u>37.</u>	Organo phosphorous Pesticides (Solid) SW		
1216		846 8141	\$210.00
1217	34. <u>38.</u>	Organo phosphorous Pesticides (Solid) SW		
1218		846 8141 NC	\$145.00
1219	35. <u>39.</u>	PCBs By Gas Chromatograph SW 846 8082		
1220		NC	\$121.00
1221	36. <u>40.</u>	PCBs By Gas Chromatograph		
1222		SW 846 8082	\$94.00
1223	37. <u>41.</u>	PCBs By Gas Chromatograph (Solid) SW		
1224		846 8082 NC	\$121.00
1225	38. <u>42.</u>	PCBs In Oil By Waste Dilution/GC SW 846		
1226		8082 NC	\$79.00
1227	39. <u>43.</u>	Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons SW		
1228		846_8270 PAH	\$125.00

1229	40. 44.	Semivolatile <u>Semi-volatile</u> Organics By	
1230		GC/MS SW 846 8270 \$ 346.00
1231	41. 45.	Semivolatile <u>Semi-volatile</u> Organics By	
1232		GC/MS (Solid) SW 846 8270 \$ 346.00
1233	42. 46.	Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons	
1234		FL-PRO 73.00 <u>\$85.00</u>
1235	43. 47.	VOCs—EDB & DBCP Only By GC EPA	
1236		504/8011 \$ 84.00
1237	44. 48.	VOCs—BTEX & MTBE Only By GC/MS SW	
1238		846 8260 \$ 90.00
1239	45. 49.	VOCs—Full List By GC/MS SW 846 8260 \$ 171.00
1240	46. 50.	VOCs—By Purge & Trap Capillary GC MS	
1241		(Solid Low Level) SW 846 8260LL \$ 286.00
1242	47. 51.	VOCs By Purge & Trap Capillary GC/MS	
1243		(Solid High Level) SW 846 8260 \$ 171.00
1244		<i>Field Sampling</i>	
1245	48. 52.	Field Services Time 75.00 <u>\$95.00/Hr</u>
1246		(Includes travel expenses, sampling, and	
1247		consumables.)	
1248	49. 53.	Groundwater Pump \$ 100.00/Day or
1249			\$50.00/Half Day
1250	50. 54.	Sediment Dredge \$ 50.00/Day or
1251			\$25.00/Half Day

1252	54. <u>55.</u>	YSI Long Term Deployment <u>\$75.00/Day</u>
1253		<i>Microbiological Samples</i>	
1254	52. <u>56.</u>	Enterococci EPA 1600/IDDEXX 42.00 <u>\$38.00</u>
1255	53. <u>57.</u>	Escherichia Coli (E. Coli) EPA 1603/IDEXX	
1256		SM9223B 42.00 <u>\$38.00</u>
1257	54. <u>58.</u>	Fecal Coliform SM 9222D IDEXX/Colilert 42.00 <u>\$38.00</u>
1258	55. <u>59.</u>	Microbial (DNA) Source Tracking	175.00 <u>\$125.00</u> per marker
1259	56. <u>60.</u>	Microscopic Identification MICROSCOPY <u>\$46.00</u>
1260	57. <u>61.</u>	Total Coliform SM 9222B IDEXX/Colilert 42.00 <u>\$38.00</u>
1261		<i>Additional fees:</i>	
1262		Data analysis/reporting 38.00 <u>\$40.00</u> per hour
1263		...	
1264	q. p.	The Fee Schedule for Section 27-14,	
1265		“Administrative review of EPGMD <u>RED</u>	
1266		determinations” is <u>fee</u> 300.00 <u>\$300.00</u> .
1267		PART VI. BUILDING CODE DIVISION	
1268		40.27. General Fees Schedule.	
1269			<i>Fee</i>
1270	a.	Service Charges to Municipalities and Agencies as per Interlocal	
1271		Agreements.	
1272	b.	Overtime for Florida Building Code (FBC) Inspections and/or Plan Reviews.	
1273		For any inspections and/or plan reviews requested to be performed before 7:30 A.M. and	
1274		<u>or</u> after 4:00 P.M., Monday through Friday, or any hour during a holiday, a special overtime	

1275 fee will be charged for each inspector and/or plan reviewer of each trade required for the
 1276 inspection and/or plan review and added to the permit fee. Minimum charge per hour or
 1277 fraction thereof, with a minimum of three (3) hours to be charged:

1278 Inspector ~~\$107.00~~ \$132.00

1279 Plan Examiner ~~107.00~~ \$147.00

1280 c. Miscellaneous:

1281 1. Microfilm prints, per sheet \$1.00

1282 2. Photostat copies:

1283 (a) First fifty (50) copies no larger than
 1284 8½" × 14" N/C

1285 (b) Each additional copy \$0.15

1286 (c) 2-sided copies (duplex):

1287 (1) First side \$0.15

1288 (2) Second side \$0.05

1289 3. Scanned copies, per sheet \$3.00

1290 . . .

1291 4. DVD or flash drive \$10.00

1292 d. All Permits:

1293 . . .

1294 3. Related Service Charges:

1295 (a) Preapplication plan review based on
 1296 time consumed (per hour) ~~76.00~~ \$98.00

1297 (b) Preinspection ~~66.00~~ \$100.00

1298	(c) Reinspection for the same violation	
1299	may be charged 66.00 <u>\$100.00</u>
1300	Subsequent reinspections for the same violation may be charged in	
1301	multiples of \$66.00 <u>\$100.00</u> for the 2 nd , 3 rd , and so on.	
1302	2 nd reinspection 132.00 <u>\$200.00</u>
1303	3 rd reinspection 198.00 <u>\$300.00</u>
1304	4 th reinspection 264.00 <u>\$400.00</u>
1305	(d) Minor change of plans after permits are issued:	
1306	(1) Per hour or fraction thereof 76.00 <u>\$98.00</u>
1307	...	
1308	(e) Replacement of plans, review each trade.....	<u>\$50.00</u>
1309	(f) Permit Card replacement <u>\$50.00</u>
1310	...	
1311	4. Permit extensions <u>\$50.00</u>
1312	5. Expired permit—Minimum <u>\$125.00</u>
1313	...	
1314	(c) On projects such as extensions,	
1315	additions, carport enclosures, pools,	
1316	fences, driveways, roofs, etc., a fee	
1317	will be determined predicated on the	
1318	number of inspections required by the	
1319	Division to finalize the improvement	
1320	at a rate per inspection of 66.00 <u>\$100.00</u>

1321	...		
1322	6.	Change of Contractor\$75.00
1323	7.	Conference with Plan Reviewers, per hour,	
1324		per discipline 76.00 <u>\$98.00</u>
1325	8.	Property research fee, each request, each	
1326		address\$50.00
1327	9.	Violations (work without permits) Double Fee
1328	<u>10.</u>	<u>Permit Application Processing fee to be paid</u>	
1329		<u>at time of permit application submittal. This</u>	
1330		<u>fee is nonrefundable and in addition to</u>	
1331		<u>applicable permit fees</u> <u>\$125.00</u>
1332	40. <u>11.</u>	Minimum permit fee\$125.00
1333		<u>Minimum roofing permit fee</u> <u>\$250.00</u>
1334	41. <u>12.</u>	Private Provider fee:	
1335	(a)	If a private provider is retained by an owner or a contractor for	
1336		inspections only pursuant to Section 553.791, Florida Statutes, the	
1337		total permit fee (as calculated by Sections 40.29-40.32) will be reduced	
1338		by \$66.00 <u>\$100.00</u> for each inspection that will be performed by the	
1339		private provider.	
1340	(b)	If a private provider is retained by an owner or a contractor for both	
1341		plan review and inspections pursuant to Section 553.791, Florida	
1342		Statutes, the permit fee will be based on the cost actually incurred, on	
1343		a per-hour basis billable at the most current rates:	

1344 (1) Clerical intake and permit
1345 processing per hour or fraction
1346 thereof (subject to an annual
1347 increase in an amount not to
1348 exceed five percent (5%) per
1349 year, to address increases in
1350 operating and labor costs)\$37.70

1351 (2) Building Official review per
1352 hour or fraction thereof
1353 (subject to an annual increase
1354 in an amount not to exceed
1355 five percent (5%) per year, to
1356 address increases in operating
1357 and labor costs)\$99.80

1358 . . .

1359 **40.28. Special Fees.**

1360 . . .

1361 d. A premium service fee of ~~one hundred seven dollars (\$107.00)~~ two hundred
1362 fourteen dollars (\$214.00) per hour of service shall be collected from customers who wish
1363 to benefit from the delivery of enhanced plan review and/or inspection services as defined
1364 in Exhibit 40.B. This premium service fee is charged in addition to any applicable permit
1365 and plan review fees charged.

1366 . . .

1367 f. Broward County Building Safety Inspection Program:
1368 *Fee*

1369 . . .

1370 2. For every application for subsequent
1371 recertification at ten (10) year intervals under
1372 the Broward County Building Safety
1373 Inspection Program of
1374 Section 109.14 of the Broward County
1375 amendments to the Florida Building Code,
1376 application processing fee \$350.00

1377 3. For every extension request for
1378 recertification (or subsequent ten (10) year
1379 interval recertification) under the Broward
1380 County Building Safety Inspection Program
1381 of Section 109.14 of the Broward County
1382 amendments to the Florida Building Code,
1383 application processing fee \$50.00

1384 **40.29. Building Permits Fee Schedule.**

1385 *Fee*

1386 . . .

1387 b. Structural. Permit fees shall be calculated as the greater of the followings:

- 1388 1. Either the minimum base permit fee \$125.00
1389 Minimum base roofing permit fee \$250.00

1390 2. Or the structural permit fee shall be charged
1391 at the rate of ~~4.85%~~ 3.0% of the job value for
1392 job values of \$1 to \$9,999,999.99, and 2.5%
1393 for job values over \$10,000,000.00.

1394 ...

1395 **40.30. Electrical Permits Fee Schedule.**

1396 a. Electrical Permit fees. Permit fees shall be calculated as the greater of the
1397 following:

1398 ...

1399 2. Or the electrical permit fee shall be charged at the rate of ~~4.85%~~ 3.0% of the
1400 job value for job values of \$1 to \$9,999,999.99, and 2.5% for job values over
1401 \$10,000,000.00.

1402 ...

1403 **40.31. Mechanical (Air Conditioning and Ventilation) Permits Fee Schedule.**

1404 a. Mechanical Permit fees. Permit fees shall be calculated as the greater of the
1405 following:

1406 ...

1407 2. Or the mechanical permit fee shall be charged at the rate of ~~4.85~~ 3.0% of the
1408 job value for job values of \$1 to \$9,999,999.99, and 2.5% for job values over
1409 \$10,000,000.00.

1410 ...

1411 **40.32. Plumbing Permits Fee Schedule.**

1412 a. Plumbing Permit fees. Permit fees shall be calculated as the greater of the
1413 following:

1414 . . .

1415 2. Or the ~~mechanical~~ plumbing permit fee shall be charged at the rate of ~~1.85~~
1416 3.0% of the job value for job values of \$1 to \$9,999,999.99, and 2.5% for job
1417 values over \$10,000,000.00.

1418 . . .

1419 **40.33. Elevators, Escalators, and Other Apparatus.**

1420 a. *Permit Fees for New Elevator Construction.* Construction or alteration of
1421 passenger and freight elevators (includes initial inspection and certificate).

1422 *Fee*

1423 1. New elevator traction - each ~~\$685.00~~ \$2,422.00
1424 up to three (3) landings,
1425 \$2,953.00 between four (4)
1426 and ten (10) landings, and
1427 an additional \$94.00 per
1428 landing above ten (10)
1429 landings

1430 2. New elevator hydraulic - each ~~515.00~~ \$1,262.00 up to
1431 three (3) landings,
1432 \$1,604.00 above three (3)
1433 landings

1434	3.	Freight elevator - each <u>A, B, & C</u> 685.00
1435			<u>\$1,290.00 up to three (3)</u>
1436			<u>landings, \$2,133.00 above</u>
1437			<u>three (3) landings</u>
1438	4.	Residential elevator - each 440.00 <u>\$750.00</u>
1439	5.	Escalator <u>and moving walk</u> - each 270.00 <u>\$2,357.00</u>
1440	<u>6.</u>	<u>Limited use/limited application elevator</u>	
1441		<u>- each</u> <u>\$995.00</u>
1442	<u>7.</u>	<u>Special purpose personnel elevator - each</u> <u>\$1,262.00</u>
1443	6. <u>8.</u>	Dumbwaiters - each 170.00 <u>\$995.00</u>
1444	7. <u>9.</u>	Wheelchair lift - each 205.00 <u>\$995.00</u>
1445	8. <u>10.</u>	Lift each 340.00
1446		<u>Repair and maintenance of components for</u>	
1447		<u>an elevator - first two (2) landings</u> <u>\$693.00; each</u>
1448			<u>landing thereafter - per landing</u>
1449			<u>\$20.00</u>
1450	9.	Conveyors and all other lifting and	
1451		transporting apparatus (except as provided	
1452		herein) - each drive 110.00
1453	10. <u>11.</u>	Major alterations and remodeling for an	
1454		elevator - first two <u>(2)</u> landings 110.00

1455		<u>\$1,262.00, each landing</u>
1456		<u>thereafter \$94.00 per</u>
1457		<u>landing</u>
1458	11. Each landing thereafter—per floor	<u>..... 10.00</u>
1459	12. Refinish cab interior (no electrical work)	<u>..... 170.00 \$274.00</u>
1460	13. Vertical conveyor—each	<u>..... 205.00</u>
1461	<u>Demolish and remove conveyance from</u>	
1462	<u>service</u>	<u>..... \$623.00</u>
1463	14. Elevator for construction use only, <u>thirty (30)</u>	
1464	day limit—each	<u>..... 170.00</u>
1465		<u>Initial \$1,438.00, each</u>
1466		<u>additional thirty (30) days</u>
1467		<u>\$111.00</u>
1468	15. Key box - each	<u>..... 55.00 \$60.00</u>
1469	16. Reinspection fee	<u>..... \$200.00</u>
1470	b. <i>Fees for Existing Elevator Inspections and Renewals.</i> Fees for annual	
1471	certificate of operation renewal and inspection.	
1472		<i>Annual Certificate of</i>
1473		<i>Operation Renewal</i>
1474		<i>Fee</i>
1475	1. Chairlift, each	<u>..... \$80.00 \$105.00</u>
1476	2. Dumbwaiter:	
1477	(a) One (1) to four (4) landings	<u>..... 66.00 \$91.00</u>

1478	(b) Five (5) to ten (10) landings	102.00	<u>\$127.00</u>
1479	3. Escalator/Moving Walks, each	152.00	<u>\$177.00</u>
1480	4. Hydraulic elevator:			
1481	(a) Two (2) to three (3) landings	100.00	<u>\$125.00</u>
1482	(b) Four (4) to six (6) landings	110.00	<u>\$135.00</u>
1483	(c) Seven (7) to fifteen (15) landings	118.00	<u>\$143.00</u>
1484	5. Traction Elevator:			
1485	(a) Two (2) to three (3) landings	100.00	<u>\$125.00</u>
1486	(b) Four (4) to six (6) landings	110.00	<u>\$135.00</u>
1487	(c) Seven (7) to fifteen (15) landings	118.00	<u>\$143.00</u>
1488	(d) Sixteen (16) to twenty-five (25)			
1489	landings	152.00	<u>\$177.00</u>
1490	(e) Twenty-six (26) and higher landings	168.00	<u>\$198.00</u>
1491	6. Additional Charge for Late Renewal of			
1492	Certificate of Operation		<u>\$75.00</u>
1493	7. Charge for replacement Certificate of			
1494	Operation		<u>\$50.00</u>
1495	8. Charge for replacement Permit Card		<u>\$50.00</u>
1496	9. Annual Operation Renewal Inspection Fee	20.00	<u>\$100.00</u>
1497	<u>10. Overtime for Elevator Inspections and/or</u>			
1498	<u>Plan Reviews. For any inspections and/or</u>			
1499	<u>plan reviews requested to be performed</u>			
1500	<u>before 7:30 A.M. or after</u>			

1501 4:00 P.M., Monday through Friday, or any
1502 hour during a holiday, a special overtime
1503 fee will be charged for each inspector
1504 and/or plan examiner of each trade required
1505 for the inspection and/or plan review and
1506 added to the permit fee. Minimum charge
1507 per hour or fraction thereof with a minimum
1508 of three (3) hours to be charged:

1509	<u>Inspector</u>	<u>..... \$132.00</u>
1510	<u>Plan Examiner</u>	<u>..... \$147.00</u>

1511 11. A premium service fee of two hundred fourteen dollars (\$214.00) per hour of
1512 service shall be collected from customers who wish to benefit from the
1513 delivery of enhanced plan review and/or inspection services as defined in
1514 Exhibit 40.B. This premium service fee is charged in addition to any applicable
1515 permit and plan review fees charged.

1516 **40.34. Tree Trimming License Fee.**

1517 The following fee shall be paid prior to the issuance or renewal of a Tree Trimmer
1518 License. Tree Trimmer Licenses shall be effective for a period of two (2) years after date of
1519 issue:

1520		<i>Fee</i>
1521	a. Class A License	<u>..... \$230.00</u>
1522	b. Class B License	<u>..... \$230.00</u>
1523	...	

1524 **40.36. Code Compliance Fee Schedule.**

1525		<i>Fee</i>
1526	a. <i>Administrative fees:</i>	
1527	1. Junk property	\$125.00
1528	2. Code Enforcement Board/ <u>Special</u>	
1529	<u>Magistrate</u>	<u>\$125.00</u>
1530	3. Citation program	<u>\$25.00</u>
1531	4. Boats (above administrative fee plus actual	
1532	cost of removal per vendor contract)	<u>\$125.00</u>
1533	5. Research (lien letters) <u>seven (7)</u> business	
1534	days	<u>\$30.00</u>
1535	6. Release of Lien (expediting) <u>two (2)</u>	
1536	business days	<u>\$60.00</u>
1537	7. Release of Lien (Fax)	<u>\$5.00</u>
1538	8. Release of Lien (Administrative)	<u>\$250.00</u>
1539	b. <i>Land clearance:</i>	
1540	1. Administrative cost of clearance of property	<u>\$125.00</u>
1541	2. Removal charge per cubic yard	<u>\$0.14</u>
1542	c. <i>Service Charges to Municipalities—As per Inter-local <u>Interlocal</u></i>	
1543	<i>Agreements.</i>	
1544	d. <i>Records:</i>	
1545	1. Microfilm prints (per sheet)	<u>\$0.36</u>

1546	2.	Photostat copies (each, over <u>fifty (50)</u>	
1547		consecutively run, <u>one (1)</u> side)\$0.15
1548	3.	Photostat copies (each, over <u>fifty (50)</u>	
1549		consecutively run, <u>two (2)</u> sides)\$0.20
1550	e.	<i>Explosives licenses:</i>	
1551	1.	Annual renewal:	
1552		(a) Manufacturer/Distributor and dealer	
1553		for sale of explosives 1,400.00 <u>\$1,600.00</u>
1554		(b) User 1,400.00 <u>\$1,600.00</u>
1555		(c) Blasters 600.00 <u>\$800.00</u>
1556		(d) Carriers and handlers 360.00 <u>\$400.00</u>
1557	2.	License may be issued for periods of less than a full year and shall be	
1558		prorated in increments of <u>twenty-five percent (25%)</u> of the annual fee per	
1559		quarter.	
1560	f.	<i>Blasting permits (countywide)(annual renewal):</i>	
1561	1.	Per site 13,400.00 <u>\$14,000.00</u>
1562	2.	Overtime, special inspections, or standby on	
1563		site per hour (includes one <u>(1)</u> inspector and	
1564		one <u>(1)</u> seismograph, minimum one <u>(1)</u> hour	
1565		to be paid by explosive company of record)\$100.00
1566	3.	Change of contractor, seismologist, or	
1567		blaster of record\$500.00
1568	4.	Overnight "sleeper," charge per day 200.00 <u>\$300.00</u>

1569	5.	Consultation, research, evaluation of	
1570		blasting records, per <u>half (1/2)</u> hour 150.00 <u>\$200.00</u>
1571	6.	Temporary storage of explosives and	
1572		blasting agents 13,400.00 <u>\$14,000.00</u>
1573	7.	Change of plans 250.00 <u>\$300.00</u>
1574	8.	Duplicate identification cards 40.00 <u>\$25.00</u>
1575	g.	<i>Demolition implosion permits (countywide):</i>	
1576	1.	Per site 11,400.00 <u>\$12,400.00</u>
1577	2.	Overtime on site per hour (includes one <u>(1)</u>	
1578		inspector, minimum one <u>(1)</u> hour to be paid	
1579		by permittee of record) 100.00 <u>\$150.00</u>
1580	3.	Change of permittee of record \$500.00
1581	4.	Consultation, research, evaluation of	
1582		blasting records, per <u>half (1/2)</u> hour 150.00 <u>\$200.00</u>
1583	5.	Change of plans 250.00 <u>\$300.00</u>
1584	h.	<i>Compaction permits (countywide) (annual</i>	
1585		<i>renewal):</i>	
1586	1.	Per site 6,000.00 <u>\$6,500.00</u>
1587	2.	Overtime, special inspections, or standby on	
1588		site per hour (includes one <u>(1)</u> inspector and	
1589		one <u>(1)</u> seismograph, minimum one <u>(1)</u> hour	
1590		to be paid by permittee of record) 100.00 <u>\$150.00</u>
1591	3.	Change of permittee of record \$500.00

1592	4.	Consultation, research, evaluation of	
1593		compaction records, per <u>half (1/2)</u> hour 150.00 <u>\$200.00</u>
1594	5.	Change of plans 250.00 <u>\$300.00</u>
1595	i.	<i>Junkyard permits:</i>	
1596	1.	Original permit <u>\$900.00</u>
1597	2.	Annual renewal <u>\$450.00</u>
1598	j.	<i>Certificate of Foreclosure Inspection:</i> per residence <u>\$250.00</u>
1599	k.	Irrigation Variance Petition:	
1600	1.	Filing fee per address <u>\$175.00</u>
1601	2.	Hearing Officer Services (per hour or portion	
1602		thereof in excess of an initial half <u>(1/2)</u> hour,	
1603		including hearing time, consideration of	
1604		petition, and drafting of order) <u>\$150.00/hour</u>
1605		...	

40.39. Cooling Tower License Fee.

The following fee shall be paid prior to the issuance or renewal of a Cooling Tower License. Cooling Tower Licenses shall be effective for up to one (1) year from date of issuance and shall expire ~~of~~ on March 31st of each year:

1610			<i>Fee</i>
1611		Cooling Tower License, issuance and renewal \$100.00 <u>\$150.00</u>
1612		...	

PART VIII. REVIEW BY THE URBAN PLANNING AND REDEVELOPMENT DIVISION

40.45. Fee Schedule—~~Land Use Plan (LUP)~~ Comprehensive Plan Amendments.

1615 a. The Board of County Commissioners of Broward County establishes the
 1616 following fee schedule for administrative processing by the Urban Planning Division of
 1617 applications for amendments to the Broward Municipal Services District (“BMSD”) Future
 1618 Land Use Element, and applications for amendments to the Broward County Land Use
 1619 Plan Map and Comprehensive Plan Goals, Objectives, and Policies:

		<u>Fee</u>
1620		
1621	1. Amendments to BMSD Future Land Use	
1622	Element, as amended, and Broward County	
1623	Land Use Plan, as amended: <u>Broward</u>	
1624	<u>Municipal Services District Future Land Use</u>	
1625	<u>Map—Small Scale (includes recertification)</u> \$7,100.00
1626		<u>Fee</u>
1627	(a) Map Changes \$2,300.00
1628	(b) Text Changes 1,000.00
1629	2. Amendments to BMSD Future Land Use Element:	
1630	(a) Map Changes 2,300.00
1631	(b) Text Changes 1,000.00
1632	2. <u>Comprehensive Plan Amendment Goals,</u>	
1633	<u>Objectives, Policies (includes recertification)</u>	
1634	<u>text change</u>	<u>..... \$3,100.00</u>
1635	...	

1636 **40.46. Fee Schedule—Compatibility and School Impact Review of Allocation of**
 1637 **Flexibility and Reserve Redevelopment Units.**

1638 a. The Board of County Commissioners of Broward County establishes a fee of
 1639 one thousand four hundred dollars (\$1,400.00) for review by the Urban Planning Division
 1640 of applications for the allocation of ~~flexibility and reserve~~ redevelopment units, and for
 1641 compatibility with adjacent land uses and impacts on public school facilities.

1642 . . .

1643 **40.47. Rezoning, ~~Special Exception, and Zoning Code Change, Site Plan, and~~**
 1644 **Flexibility Utilization Fee Schedule.**

1645 *Fee*

- 1646 a. Rezoning, ~~special exceptions and Zoning Code changes, and site plans:~~
- 1647 1. Rezoning petition (except ~~PEC and PDD~~) \$750.00
- 1648 2. Rezoning petition for ~~PEC and PDD~~
- 1649 (minimum fee) ~~\$~~800.00
- 1650 Plus, per acre ~~\$~~15.00
- 1651 3. Zoning Code amendment ~~\$~~1,200.00
- 1652 4. ~~Special exception (County Commission~~
- 1653 ~~approval required)~~ ~~600.00~~

1654 Site Plan Application Fees:

- 1655 (a) Courtesy Conceptual Site Plan
- 1656 Meeting No Charge
- 1657 (b) Site Plan Preapplication Meeting \$72.00
- 1658 (c) Site Plan Application:

1659	(1)	<u>Full agency review or</u>	
1660		<u>significant review to an</u>	
1661		<u>approved site plan</u> \$475.00 plus:
1662	a)	<u>Residential</u> \$14.00/unit
1663	b)	<u>Commercial, Industrial,</u>	
1664		<u>Mixed Use</u> \$2.90/100 square feet
1665			<u>of nonresidential floor area</u>
1666	(2)	<u>Minor deviations that do not</u>	
1667		<u>require full agency review</u> \$158.00 plus:
1668	a)	<u>Residential</u> \$14.00/unit
1669	b)	<u>Commercial, Industrial,</u>	
1670		<u>Mixed Use</u> \$2.90/100 square feet
1671			<u>of nonresidential floor area</u>
1672		...	

40.48. Zoning Fee Schedule.

1674			<i>Fee</i>
1675	a.	Variances and Appeals:	
1676	1.	Administrative appeals \$200.00
1677	2.	Variance minimum filing fee	
1678		(one (1) section waiver) \$400.00
1679	3.	Each additional section waiver \$50.00
1680	b.	Certificates of Use:	

1681	1.	Mobile food units, joint office occupancy,	
1682		plant nurseries, new building first	
1683		occupancy\$65.00
1684	2.	Retail stores, offices (primary occupant),	
1685		riding or boarding stables, other commercial	
1686		agricultural uses\$100.00
1687	3.	Family day care homes\$30.00
1688	4.	Personal services shops, medical offices,	
1689		clinics, day care centers, community	
1690		residential facilities, rooming and boarding	
1691		homes, storage and distribution	
1692		warehouses, outdoor retail, recreation	
1693		establishments, repair shops (excluding	
1694		auto repair), gas stations\$150.00
1695	5.	Places of assembly (bars, restaurants,	
1696		houses of worship, schools, clubs, etc.),	
1697		repair garages, manufacturing and industrial	
1698		occupancies\$180.00
1699	6.	Hotels, motels, nursing homes, theaters,	
1700		arenas, hospitals, bowling alleys, marinas\$225.00
1701	7.	Business name change only\$10.00
1702	8.	Reinspection fee\$40.00

1703	9.	Joint tenant (except as in <u>Sub</u> section 1.	
1704		above)\$40.00
1705	c.	Conditional use permits:	
1706	1.	Holiday wayside stands:	
1707	(a)	Processing and inspections\$100.00
1708	(b)	Cleanup deposit (refundable)\$250.00
1709	2.	Outdoor events:	
1710	(a)	Processing and inspections\$150.00
1711	(b)	Cleanup deposit (refundable)\$250.00
1712	3.	Temporary sign permits:	
1713	(a)	Base price for one (1) temporary	
1714		sign\$100.00
1715	(b)	Each additional temporary sign\$25.00
1716	d.	Service charges to municipalities as per	
1717		interlocal agreements.	
1718	e.	Records:	
1719	1.	Microfilm prints (per sheet)\$0.36
1720	2.	Photostat copies (each, over <u>fifty</u> (50)	
1721		consecutively run, <u>one</u> (1) side)\$0.15
1722	3.	Photostat copies (each, over <u>fifty</u> (50)	
1723		consecutively run, <u>two</u> (2) sides)\$0.20
1724	4.	Official zoning maps (plus sales tax)\$3.50
1725	f.	Zoning letters\$30.00

1726	g.	Zoning permits:	
1727	1.	Application processing fee\$15.00
1728	2.	Priority review (includes minimum landscaping) (maximum <u>two (2)</u>	
1729		applications per applicant per day):	
1730	(a)	Fences (not associated with pools or spas).....	\$45.00
1731		Plus, per lineal foot\$0.40
1732	(b)	Docks, boathouses, boat lifts\$60.00
1733	(c)	Residential driveways and slabs (not	
1734		associated with room additions or	
1735		garages)\$35.00
1736	(d)	Change of plans (single-family and duplex).....	\$55.00
1737	3.	Zoning review and inspections (minus landscaping, paving, and accessory	
1738		structures):	
1739	(a)	New detached single-family residences:	
1740	(1)	1,000 square feet or less\$25.00
1741	(2)	1,001 to 2,000 square feet\$40.00
1742	(3)	2,001 to 3,000 square feet\$60.00
1743	(4)	Each additional 500 sq. ft.	
1744		<u>square feet</u> over 3,000 sq. ft.	
1745		<u>square feet</u>\$15.00
1746	(b)	New attached single-family residences or multi-family <u>multifamily</u>	
1747		residential:	
1748	(1)	2 to 9 D.U.s <u>dwelling units</u>\$40.00

1749	(2)	10 to 50 D.U.s <u>dwelling units</u>	\$55.00
1750	(3)	51 to 150 D.U.s <u>dwelling units</u>	\$80.00
1751	(4)	Each 50 D.U.s <u>dwelling units</u> over 150	\$25.00
1752	(c)	New nonresidential single-occupant buildings (excluding assembly		
1753		uses such as restaurants, bars, places of worship, clubs, etc.):		
1754	(1)	Up to 2,000 square feet of		
1755		gross floor area	\$50.00
1756	(2)	2,000 to 20,000 square feet of		
1757		gross floor area	\$80.00
1758	(3)	Over 20,000 square feet of		
1759		gross floor area	\$100.00
1760	(d)	New shopping centers, office or industrial parks, or additions thereto:		
1761	(1)	Up to 2,000 sq. ft. <u>square feet</u>		
1762		of gross floor area	\$50.00
1763	(2)	2,000 to 20,000 sq. ft. <u>square</u>		
1764		<u>feet of</u> gross floor area	\$80.00
1765	(3)	20,000 to 60,000 sq. ft. <u>square</u>		
1766		<u>feet of</u> gross floor area	\$120.00
1767	(4)	60,000 to 120,000 sq. ft.		
1768		<u>square feet of</u> gross floor area	\$175.00
1769	(5)	120,000 to 200,000 sq. ft.		
1770		<u>square feet of</u> gross floor area	\$240.00

1771	(6)	200,000 to 290,000 sq. ft.	
1772		<u>square feet of gross floor area</u>\$300.00
1773	(7)	Each 90,000 additional sq. ft.	
1774		<u>square feet of gross floor area</u>	
1775		over 290,000 sq. ft. <u>square</u>	
1776		<u>feet</u>\$70.00
1777	(e)	New single-occupant buildings for	
1778		assembly uses (such as restaurants,	
1779		bars, gyms, clubs, places of worship,	
1780		theaters, schools, arenas, etc.),	
1781		hotels, motels, hospitals\$75.00
1782	(f)	New outdoor facilities (such as	
1783		stadiums, outdoor recreation	
1784		establishments, swap shops)\$100.00
1785	(g)	New agricultural buildings\$50.00
1786	(h)	Residential additions:	
1787	(1)	Room addition and paving\$35.00
1788	(2)	Carport enclosure including paving.....	\$30.00
1789	(3)	Screen rooms, porches\$25.00
1790	(i)	Residential accessory buildings and structures:	
1791	(1)	Detached accessory buildings	
1792		such as sheds, garages\$25.00

1793	(2)	Pools, spas (not including	
1794		fences or screening)\$30.00
1795	(3)	Docks, boathouses, boat lifts,	
1796		seawalls\$20.00
1797	(4)	Driveways, patio slabs, decks,	
1798		walkways;\$10.00
1799	(5)	Refurbish or reconfigure	
1800		parking <u>(two (2) or more</u>	
1801		<u>D.U.s dwelling units)</u>\$35.00
1802	(6)	All other accessory structures	
1803		except fences\$25.00
1804	(j)	Fences:	
1805	(1)	Minimum fee\$15.00
1806	(2)	Per lineal foot\$0.20
1807	(k)	Additions and interior modifications to	
1808		single-occupant commercial	
1809		buildings, agricultural buildings, and	
1810		outdoor recreation uses\$45.00
1811	(l)	Changes of use, addition of new use,	
1812		or interior modification in	
1813		multiple-tenant nonresidential	
1814		buildings\$55.00
1815	(m)	Permanent signs:	

1816	(1)	Minimum fee	<u>\$15.00</u>
1817	(2)	Box or cabinet sign, per square		
1818		foot of sign face	<u>\$0.75</u>
1819	(3)	Individual letter sign, per		
1820		square foot of sign face	<u>\$0.50</u>
1821	(4)	All other types, per square foot		
1822		of sign area	<u>\$0.40</u>
1823	(5)	Strip lighting, per lineal foot	<u>\$0.25</u>
1824	(6)	Illumination, per sign face	<u>\$10.00</u>
1825	(7)	Master sign plan	<u>\$50.00</u>
1826	(n)	Dumpster pads and enclosures	<u>\$50.00</u>
1827	(o)	Multifamily and nonresidential paving:		
1828	(1)	Off-street parking facility for		
1829		new building	<u>\$75.00</u>
1830	(2)	Additional paving to existing		
1831		parking facility	<u>\$45.00</u>
1832	(3)	Reconfiguration or <u>of</u> existing		
1833		parking facility	<u>\$30.00</u>
1834	(4)	Seal and/or restripe existing		
1835		parking facility	<u>\$25.00</u>
1836	(p)	Construction trailers, temporary		
1837		mobile homes during construction of		
1838		home, temporary sales office	<u>\$25.00</u>

1839	(q)	Communication towers	\$100.00
1840	4.	Landscaping review and inspections:		
1841	(a)	Detached single-family:		
1842	(1)	Minimum fee per lot	\$30.00
1843	(2)	Each tree over <u>three (3)</u>	\$9.00
1844	(b)	Attached single-family residences,		
1845		multi-family <u>multifamily</u> , and		
1846		nonresidential buildings and		
1847		structures:		
1848	(1)	Minimum fee	\$50.00
1849	(2)	Each tree	\$9.00
1850	(3)	Ground cover, per each <u>one</u>		
1851		<u>thousand (1,000) sq. ft. square</u>		
1852		<u>feet</u>	\$18.00
1853	(4)	Buffer hedges, per each <u>one</u>		
1854		<u>hundred (100) lineal feet</u>	\$24.00
1855	(c)	Dumpster enclosures	\$30.00
1856	5.	Change of plans:		
1857	(a)	Detached single-family residence,		
1858		accessory buildings and structures,		
1859		duplexes	\$20.00
1860	(b)	All others	\$50.00
1861	6.	Change of contractor	\$15.00

1862	7.	Reinspection fee	\$40.00
1863	8.	Permit renewal	<u>half (1/2)</u> original fee
1864	9.	Construction without a permit	double normal fee
1865	10.	Permit card replacement (lost or damaged)	\$12.00

1866 . . .

PART IX. CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION¹¹

40.50. Consumer Protection Fee Schedule.

1869 a. ~~*Kosher Food License Fees.* It shall be unlawful for any person to sell or offer~~
 1870 ~~to sell any food, food products, beverages, or merchandise held out to be kosher unless~~
 1871 ~~said person shall have procured from the County an annual special regulatory license. Such~~
 1872 ~~regulatory license shall be procured from the County Clerk and shall be issued upon~~
 1873 ~~payment of Two Hundred and 00/100 Dollars (\$200.00), which fee represents the~~
 1874 ~~reasonable cost of the special supervision, inspection, and regulation required. Any person~~
 1875 ~~violating the terms of this section shall be subject to the penalties provided.~~

1876 b. a. *Taximeter Rates.* These rates shall be:

1877				<i>Fee</i>
1878	1.	For the first <u>one-sixth (1/6)</u> of a mile or any		
1879		part thereof (Drop Rate)	\$3.50*
1880		. . .		
1881	2.	For each additional <u>one-sixth (1/6)</u> of a mile		
1882		of any part thereof	\$0.48
1883	3.	For each one (1) minute waiting time	\$0.40
1884		. . .		

1885 e. b. *Towing and Immobilization Rates and Fees.* The Broward County Board of
 1886 County Commissioners hereby determines, establishes, and fixes the following rates and
 1887 fees:

- 1888 1. *Towing Operating License:*
- | | | | | | |
|------|-----|------------------------------------|-------|---------------------|-----------------|
| 1889 | (a) | Application Fee | | \$525.00 | <u>\$615.00</u> |
| 1890 | (b) | Extension Fee | | 75.00 | <u>\$88.00</u> |
| 1891 | (c) | Renewal Application Fee | | 525.00 | <u>\$615.00</u> |
| 1892 | (d) | Expedited Fee | | 225.00 | <u>\$264.00</u> |
| 1893 | (e) | Annual Storage Site Inspection Fee | | 100.00 | <u>\$117.00</u> |
| 1894 | (f) | Storage Site Reinspection Fee | | 50.00 | <u>\$59.00</u> |

1895 . . .

- 1896 2. *Tow Truck Decal (per truck):*
- | | | | | | |
|------|-----|-------------------------|-------|---------------------|-----------------|
| 1897 | (a) | Application Fee | | \$150.00 | <u>\$176.00</u> |
| 1898 | (b) | Extension Fee | | 25.00 | <u>\$29.00</u> |
| 1899 | (c) | Renewal Application Fee | | 150.00 | <u>\$176.00</u> |
| 1900 | (d) | Expedited Fee | | 75.00 | <u>\$88.00</u> |
| 1901 | (e) | Replacement Decal | | 30.00 | <u>\$35.00</u> |

- 1902 3. *Immobilization Operating License:*
- | | | | | | |
|------|-----|-------------------------|-------|---------------------|-----------------|
| 1903 | (a) | Application Fee | | \$400.00 | <u>\$469.00</u> |
| 1904 | (b) | Extension Fee | | 50.00 | <u>\$59.00</u> |
| 1905 | (c) | Renewal Application Fee | | 400.00 | <u>\$469.00</u> |
| 1906 | (d) | Expedited Fee | | 175.00 | <u>\$205.00</u> |

1907 . . .

1908 5. *Annual Rate and Fee Increases:* Effective October 1, ~~2019~~ 2025, and each
1909 October 1 thereafter, all rates and fees referenced in this Section 40.50 shall
1910 be increased by the annual percentage change in the Consumer Price Index
1911 (“CPI”) or three percent (3%), whichever is less, rounded to the nearest dollar.
1912 Each year’s rates and fees increase shall be calculated based on the amounts
1913 from the previous year. The CPI utilized shall be the most recent CPI reported
1914 by the Bureau of Labor Statistics Transportation Index, as published in
1915 January. The adjusted rates and fees shall be calculated by the Broward
1916 County Consumer Protection Division and shall be posted on its website.

1917 ~~d. c.~~ *Title Loan License Fees.* The Broward County Board of County
1918 Commissioners hereby determines, establishes, and fixes the following fees:

		<i>Fee</i>
1919		
1920	1. Application fee	\$50.00
1921	2. License fee, per year, per location	<u>\$400.00</u>
1922	3. Late fee for renewal of license after expiration	<u>\$50.00</u>

1923 ~~e. d.~~ *Fees for Taxicabs and Limousines.* The following fees relating to taxicabs,
1924 limousines, and jitneys are hereby determined to be just and reasonable and are hereby
1925 adopted by the Board of County Commissioners:

		<i>Fee</i>
1926		
1927	1. Entry Fee for Taxi/Luxury Sedan Lottery	\$400.00
1928	2. New Certificate of Public Convenience and	
1929	Necessity Fee (One <u>(1)</u> Time Charge Per	
1930	Certificate)	<u>\$1,000.00</u>

1931	3.	Application to Transfer a Certificate of		
1932		Public Convenience and Necessity (Per		
1933		Certificate) 250.00	<u>\$375.00</u>
1934	4.	Reinstatement of Suspended Certificate of		
1935		Public Convenience and Necessity (Per		
1936		Certificate) 100.00	<u>\$150.00</u>
1937	5.	Change of Name of Certificate Holder (Per		
1938		Certificate) 40.00	<u>\$60.00</u>
1939	6.	Application to Lease a Luxury Sedan Permit		
1940		(Per Permit) 250.00	<u>\$375.00</u>
1941	7.	Annual Taxi/Luxury Sedan Permit Fee (Per Permit):		
1942	(a)	Non-wheelchair accessible 200.00	<u>\$250.00</u>
1943	(b)	Wheelchair accessible	<u>\$50.00*</u>
1944		*Annual operating permit fees for wheelchair accessible taxicabs are		
1945		waived for the time periods from March 1, 2020, to December 31,		
1946		2021. Any annual operating permit fees paid for wheelchair accessible		
1947		taxicab registration or renewal fees for this time period will be		
1948		refunded.		
1949	8.	Annual Luxury Limousine/Transport Van		
1950		Permit Fee (Per Permit) 300.00	<u>\$450.00</u>
1951	9.	Annual Jitney License and Permit Fee (Per		
1952		Permit) 200.00	<u>\$450.00</u>

1953	10.	Annual Special Permit Fee (per vehicle for	
1954		vehicles providing service at the Airport that	
1955		are not already permitted under Chapter	
1956		22½ 6A, 6C, 7B, or 7C of the Code of	
1957		Ordinances): 100.00
1958	(a)	<u>Not permitted in Broward County</u> \$150.00
1959	(b)	<u>Permitted in Broward County</u> \$50.00
1960	11.	Chauffeur's Registration Fee 40.00 <u>\$80.00</u>
1961	...		
1962	12.	Duplicate Chauffeur's Registration Fee 15.00 <u>\$25.00</u>
1963	13.	Duplicate Inspection and Permit Fee 30.00 <u>\$45.00</u>
1964	14.	Late Fee for Chauffeur's Registration	
1965		Renewal after Expiration 25.00 <u>\$30.00</u>
1966	15.	Late Fee for Permit Renewal Payment After	
1967		Due Date at <u>after</u> May 31 (Per Permit) 50.00 <u>\$60.00</u>
1968	16.	Late Fee for Vehicles Passing Annual	
1969		Inspection After June 30 (Per Vehicle) 50.00 <u>\$60.00*</u>
1970	17.	Late Fee for Vehicles Passing Semiannual	
1971		Vehicle Inspection after the Four (4) Week	
1972		Inspection Period as Set Annually by the	
1973		Division (Per Vehicle) 50.00 <u>\$60.00*</u>
1974	...		

1975	18.	Port Everglades Business Permit Initial		
1976		Application Processing Fee 200.00	<u>\$250.00</u>
1977	19.	Annual Port Everglades Motor Carrier		
1978		Business Permit Fee (Per Permit)	<u>\$250.00</u>
1979	20.	Port Everglades Decal (Per Vehicle) 45.00	<u>\$20.00</u>
1980	21.	Temporary Limousine Permit Fees	<u>\$100.00</u>
1981	22.	Temporary Limousine Permit Sponsorship		
1982		Fee	<u>\$100.00</u>
1983	f. e.	<i>License Fees for Motor Vehicle Repair Shops and Certification Fees for</i>		
1984		<i>Technicians, Trainee <u>Apprentice</u> Permit Fees, and Lube and Tire Specialist</i>		
1985		<i>Fees. The Broward County Board of County Commissioners hereby</i>		
1986		<i>determines, establishes, and fixes the following fees:</i>		
1987				<i>Fee</i>
1988	1.	License fee, per shop \$275.00	<u>\$350.00</u>
1989	2.	Late fees for renewal of license after		
1990		expiration 25.00	<u>\$30.00</u>
1991	3.	Technician certification fee 50.00	<u>\$75.00</u>
1992	4.	Late fee for renewal of technician certificate		
1993		after expiration 40.00	<u>\$15.00</u>
1994	5.	Trainee <u>Apprentice</u> permit fee 20.00	<u>\$30.00</u>
1995	6.	Late fee for renewal of trainee <u>apprentice</u>		
1996		permit after expiration 5.00	<u>\$10.00</u>
1997	7.	Lube and tire specialist permit fee 20.00	<u>\$30.00</u>

1998	8.	Late fee for renewal of lube and tire	
1999		specialist permit after expiration 5.00 <u>\$10.00</u>
2000	9.	Replacement fee for any license or permit,	
2001		each occurrence 10.00 <u>\$20.00</u>

2002 Payment of such fees to the County shall be a condition precedent to the approval
 2003 and issuance of an initial or renewal license, technician certification, ~~trainee~~ apprentice
 2004 permit, or lube and tire specialist permit.

2005 ~~The one-time fees for automobile technician certifications and trainee and lube and~~
 2006 ~~tire specialist permits issued between September 2019 and February 2020 will be as~~
 2007 ~~follows:~~

2008	Automobile technicians	\$75
2009	Trainees	\$30
2010	Lube and Tire Specialists	\$30

2011 ~~For all certificates and permits issued subsequent to February 28, 2020, the fees~~
 2012 ~~shall be as provided in Section 40.50(f) of the Administrative Code.~~

2013 ~~g. f.~~ *License Fees for Motor Vehicle Body Repair and Paint Shops, Certification*
 2014 *Fees for Technicians, and Trainee Apprentice Permit Fees.* The Broward County Board of
 2015 County Commissioners hereby determines, establishes, and fixes the following fees:

2016			<i>Fee</i>
2017	1.	License or Conditional License Fee, per	
2018		year, per shop \$325.00 <u>\$350.00</u>
2019	2.	Technician Certification Fee, per year 50.00 <u>\$75.00</u>
2020	3.	Trainee <u>Apprentice</u> Permit Fee, per year 20.00 <u>\$30.00</u>

2021	4.	Late Fee for Renewal of License After		
2022		Expiration 25.00	<u>\$30.00</u>
2023	5.	Late Fee for Renewal of Technician		
2024		Certificate After Expiration 10.00	<u>\$15.00</u>
2025	6.	Late Fee for Renewal of Trainee <u>Apprentice</u>		
2026		Permit After Expiration 5.00	<u>\$10.00</u>
2027		...		

2028 h. g. *Registration Fees for Movers.* The Broward County Board of County
 2029 Commissioners determines, establishes, and fixes the following fees:

2030				<i>Fee</i>
2031	1.	Registration Fee \$325.00	<u>\$400.00</u>
2032	2.	Renewal Fee 325.00	<u>\$400.00</u>
2033	3.	Late Fee for Renewal of Registration after		
2034		expiration 25.00	<u>\$30.00</u>
2035	4.	Fee for Replacement of Lost, Destroyed, or		
2036		Mutilated Registration 25.00	<u>\$40.00</u>
2037	5.	Decal Fee, per vehicle 50.00	<u>\$75.00</u>
2038		...		

2039 i. ~~*Application Fees for Licenses for Locksmiths and Apprentice Locksmiths and*~~
 2040 ~~*for Registration of Locksmith Businesses.*~~ The Broward County Board of County
 2041 Commissioners hereby determines, establishes, and fixes the following fees:

2042				<i>Fee</i>
2043	1.	Locksmith license or renewal	<u>\$120.00</u>

2044	2.	Apprentice Locksmith license or renewal40.00
2045	3.	Locksmith Business registration or renewal	
2046		per location)505.00
2047	4.	Late fees:	
2048	a.	Late fee for application for Locksmith	
2049		Business registration after expiration	
2050		of existing registration50.00
2051	b.	Late fee for application for Locksmith	
2052		license after expiration of existing	
2053		Locksmith license25.00
2054	c.	Late fee for application for	
2055		Apprentice Locksmith license after	
2056		expiration of existing Apprentice	
2057		Locksmith license10.00
2058	5.	Replacement fee for any license or business	
2059		registration, per occurrence20.00
2060	6.	Criminal Background Check(s). Applicant	
2061		shall pay all fees charged by the Florida	
2062		Department of Law Enforcement to secure	
2063		the necessary criminal history and records	
2064		report(s), including out-of-state reports for	
2065		applicants who have resided in Florida for	
2066		fewer than five (5) consecutive years	

2067 immediately preceding the date of
2068 application.

2069 **40.51. Child Care Licensing and Enforcement Section Fee Schedule.**

2070 . . .

2071 b. *Child Care Facility Preliminary Application Fee.* Contemporaneously with the
2072 submission of a child care facility's license application, the child care facility shall be
2073 charged a preliminary application fee of ~~\$39.10~~ \$40.27.

2074 c. *Child Care Facility Annual License Fee.* Contemporaneously with the
2075 submission of a child care facility's license application, and each year thereafter, the child
2076 care facility shall be charged a license fee based on the number of children permitted at
2077 the child care facility, as follows:

2078	1. Center capacity 0 – 50 \$101.65 <u>\$104.70</u>
2079	2. Center capacity 51-150 179.94 <u>\$185.24</u>
2080	3. Center capacity over 150 234.55 <u>\$241.59</u>

2081 . . .

2082 Section 2. Severability.

2083 If any portion of this Administrative Code Resolution is determined by any court to
2084 be invalid, the invalid portion will be stricken, and such striking will not affect the validity of
2085 the remainder of this Administrative Code Resolution. If any court determines that this
2086 Administrative Code Resolution, in whole or in part, cannot be legally applied to any
2087 individual, group, entity, property, or circumstance, such determination will not affect the
2088 applicability of this Administrative Code Resolution to any other individual, group, entity,
2089 property, or circumstance.

